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EXPLANATORY NOTE

We refer to Highwoods Properties, Inc. as the “Canyy’ Highwoods Realty Limited Partnership as ti@pérating Partnershipthe
Company’s common stock as “Common Stock” or “Comn&irares,” the Company’s preferred stock as “PrefeStock” or Preferre
Shares,” the Operating Partnership’s common pastrigiinterests as “Common Units” and the OperaBagnerships preferred partnerst
interests as “Preferred Units.” References to “aed “our’mean the Company and the Operating Partnershilectiokly, unless the conte
indicates otherwise.

The Company conducts its activities through ther@jireg Partnership and is its sole general parffiee. partnership agreement provi
that the Operating Partnership will assume andvgdan due, or reimburse the Company for paymerdlb€osts and expenses relating tc
ownership and operations of, or for the benefittiog Operating Partnership. The partnership agreefoether provides that all expense:
the Company are deemed to be incurred for the erighe Operating Partnership.

Certain information contained herein is presentedfaluly 27, 2015the latest practicable date for financial infotio® prior to the filing
of this Quarterly Report.

This report combines the Quarterly Reports on FAGrQ for the period ended June 30, 2a#5the Company and the Operal
Partnership. We believe combining the quarterlyregpinto this single report results in the follogibenefits:

» combined reports better reflect how managemenfrarestors view the business as a single operatiitg

» combined reports enhance investors' understandirtjeoCompany and the Operating Partnership by lemathem to view th
business as a whole and in the same manner as emaeatj

e combined reports are more efficient for the Compang the Operating Partnership and result in savimgime, effort and expen:
and

« combined reports are more efficient for investgrgduducing duplicative disclosure and providingragke document for their revie

To help investors understand the significant ddferes between the Company and the Operating Paripgthis report presents
following separate sections for each of the Compartythe Operating Partnership:

» Consolidated Financial Stateme

» the following Notes to Consolidated Financial Sta¢ats
* Note 8- Noncontrolling Interests; al
* Note 13- Earnings Per Share and Per L

» Item 4 -Controls and Procedures; :

* Item 6 - Certifications of CEO and CFO Pursuanections 302 and 906 of the Sarba@esey Act.
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PART | - FINANCIAL INFORMATION
ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
Consolidated Balance Sheets

(Unaudited and in thousands, except share anchpee slata)

June 30, December 31,
2015 2014

(as revised)
Assets:
Real estate assets, at cost:

Land $ 407,18( $ 384,30:
Buildings and tenant improvements 3,991,53 3,807,31!
Development in process 104,69: 205,97:
Land held for development 76,95¢ 79,35t
4,580,36. 4,476,94.
Less-accumulated depreciation (1,066,94) (1,024,93)
Net real estate assets 3,513,41 3,452,00
Real estate and other assets, net, held for sale 10,63: 1,03¢
Cash and cash equivalents 4,93¢ 8,832
Restricted cash 15,70: 14,59t
Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $1,487 $h@14, respectively 27,027 48,557
Mortgages and notes receivable, net of allowandab and $275, respectively 5,93t 13,11¢
Accrued straight-line rents receivable, net ofwaace of $1,022 and $600, respectively 151,02¢ 142,03
Investments in and advances to unconsolidate dodés 43,97¢ 50,68¢
Deferred financing and leasing costs, net of acdatad amortization of $119,396 and $112,804, respy 223,38 228,76¢
Prepaid expenses and other assets, net of accechalaortization of $15,242 and $14,259,
respectively 43,60: 39,48¢
Total Assets $ 4,039,64 $ 3,999,12
Liabilities, Noncontrolling Interests in the Operating Partnership and Equity:
Mortgages and notes payable $ 212402 $ 2,071,38
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and otheiitiiadbil 214,13: 237,63:
Financing obligation 8,96: 8,96:
Total Liabilities 2,347,12 2,317,98.
Commitments and contingencies
Noncontrolling interests in the Operating Partngrsh 116,26( 130,04
Equity:

Preferred Stock, $.01 par value, 50,000,000 autbdrshares;
8.625% Series A Cumulative Redeemable PreferreceSliguidation preference $1,000 per share),Z®dhd

29,060 shares issued and outstanding, respectively 29,05( 29,06(
Common Stock, $.01 par value, 200,000,000 authdshares;

94,118,006 and 92,907,310 shares issued and aditsjanespectively 941 92¢
Additional paid-in capital 2,525,22 2,464,27
Distributions in excess of net income availabledommon stockholders (992,42)) (957,37()
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (4,519 (3,919

Total Stockholders’ Equity 1,558,27! 1,532,98.
Noncontrolling interests in consolidated affiliates 17,98: 18,10¢

Total Equity 1,576,26 1,551,09
Total Liabilities, Noncontrolling Interests in ti@perating Partnership and Equity $§ 403964 § 3,99912

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsgistents.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Income

(Unaudited and in thousands, except per share asjoun

Rental and other revenues

Operating expenses:
Rental property and other expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Impairments of real estate assets
General and administrative

Total operating expenses

Interest expense:
Contractual
Amortization of deferred financing costs

Financing obligation

Other income:
Interest and other income

Gains/(losses) on debt extinguishment

Income from continuing operations before dispositio of investment properties and activity in

unconsolidated affiliates

Gains on disposition of property

Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates
Income from continuing operations

Discontinued operations:

Net gains on disposition of discontinued operations

Net income

Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteeeim the Operating Partnership

Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteseim consolidated affiliates
Dividends on Preferred Stock

Net income available for common stockholders

Earnings per Common Share — basic:
Income from continuing operations available for coom stockholders
Income from discontinued operations available fanmon stockholders
Net income available for common stockholders
Weighted average Common Shares outstanding — basic

Earnings per Common Share — diluted:
Income from continuing operations available for coom stockholders
Income from discontinued operations available fanmon stockholders
Net income available for common stockholders
Weighted average Common Shares outstanding —dlilute

Dividends declared per Common Share

Net income available for common stockholders:
Income from continuing operations available for coom stockholders
Income from discontinued operations available fanmon stockholders

Net income available for common stockholders

Three Months Ended

Six Months Ended

June 30, June 30,

2015 2014 2015 2014

$ 161,13 $ 152,72 318,44t $ 301,17
57,27t 55,27 114,79 111,66
51,24( 50,44 101,54t 98,60¢

— 58¢ — 58¢

8,89: 8,73¢ 20,32 19,44’
117,41( 115,03 236,66t 230,30
20,85 20,64( 41,29¢ 41,39(
82¢ 79¢ 1,62¢ 1,451
317 (226) 49¢ (266)
22,00: 21,21 43,42t 42,57t
1,19¢ 1,41( 2,43 2,80¢
(220) 18 (220) 18

97¢ 1,42¢ 2,217 2,821
22,70 17,89¢ 40,57( 31,11¢
2,412 5,947 3,56¢ 5,947
1,77¢ 667 3,581 63¢
26,89 24,51 47,72¢ 37,70

— — — 384

— — — 384
26,89 24,51 47,72¢ 38,08t
(782) (742) (1,379 (1,140
(329) (43¢) (629) (861)
(626) (627) (1,259 (1,259

$ 2515 $ 22,70t 44470 $ 34,83
$ 021 $ 0.2 047 $ 03¢
— — — 0.01

$ 021 $ 02 047 $  0.3¢
94,05t 90,25 93,64 90,11

$ 027 $ 02 047 $ 03¢
— — — 0.01

$ 021 $ 02 047 $  0.3¢
97,04 93,31 96,66t 93,17:

$ 0428 $ 042 0.85( $  0.85
$ 25158 $ 2270t 44470 $ 34,46
— — — 372

$ 25158 $ 2270t 44470 $ 34,83

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@&sients.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
(Unaudited and in thousands)

Three Months Ended
June 30,

Six Months Ended
June 30,

2015 2014

2015 2014

Comprehensive income:

Net income $ 26,89 $ 2451
Other comprehensive income/(loss):

$ 47,72¢ $ 38,08¢

Unrealized gains on tax increment financing bond 1 10t 194 27C
Unrealized gains/(losses) on cash flow hedges 26¢ (2,846 (2,645 (4,250
Amortization of cash flow hedges 92t 944 1,84¢ 1,872
Total other comprehensive income/(loss) 1,19¢ (1,797 (602) (2,109
Total comprehensive income 28,08¢ 22,71¢ 47,12« 35,98(
Less-comprehensive (income) attributable to nomodimg interests (1,110 (1,180 (2,009 (2,007
Comprehensive income attributable to common stddeins $ 2697¢ $ 2153t § 4512 $§ 33,97¢

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsgistents.
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Balance at December 31, 2014

Issuances of Common Stock, net of issuance codtsan

withholdings
Conversions of Common Units to Common Stock
Dividends on Common Stock

Dividends on Preferred Stock

Adjustment of noncontrolling interests in the Opierg
Partnership to fair value

Distributions to noncontrolling interests in coridated
affiliates

Issuances of restricted stock
Redemptions/repurchases of Preferred Stock

Share-based compensation expense, net of forfgiture

Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteéees the
Operating Partnership

Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling intese
consolidated affiliates

Comprehensive income:

Net income

Other comprehensive loss
Total comprehensive income

Balance at June 30, 2015

Balance at December 31, 2013

Issuances of Common Stock, net of issuance codttaan

withholdings
Conversions of Common Units to Common Stock
Dividends on Common Stock

Dividends on Preferred Stock

Adjustment of noncontrolling interests in the Opierg
Partnership to fair value

Distributions to noncontrolling interests in coridated
affiliates

Issuances of restricted stock

Share-based compensation expense, net of forfgiture

Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteees the
Operating Partnership

Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteees
consolidated affiliates

Comprehensive income:

Net income

Other comprehensive loss
Total comprehensive income

Balance at June 30, 2014

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsdistents.

HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Equity

(Unaudited and in thousands, except share amounts)

Series A Distributions in
Cumulative Non-controlling Excess of Net
Redeemable Accumulated Interests in Income Available
Number of Common Preferred Additional Paid- Other Compre- Consolidated for Common
Common Shares Stock Shares In Capital hensive Loss Affiliates Stockholders Total
(as revised) (as revised)
92,907,31 $ 92¢ $ 29,06( $ 2,464,227 $ (391) $ 18,10¢ $ (957,370 $ 1,551,09
1,055,49 11 — 43,20¢ — — — 43,21¢
26,82( — — 1,20¢ — — — 1,20¢
— — — — — (79,52¢) (79,52¢)
— — — — — (1,259 (1,259
— — 11,47¢ — — — 11,47¢
_ _ — — (751) — (759
128,95: = = = = = = =
—_ (10 —_ —_ —_ —_ (10
(56€) 1 = 5,06¢ = = = 5,067
— — — — — (1,379 (1,379
= = = = 624 (629 =
— — — — — 47,72¢ 47,72¢
— — — (602) — — (602)
47,12¢
94,118,00 $ 941 $ 29,05( $ 2,525,222 $ (4519 $ 17,98: $ (992,42%) $ 1,576,26
Series A Distributions in
Cumulative Non-controlling Excess of Net
Redeemable Accumulated Interests in Income Available
Number of Common Preferred Additional Paid- Other Compre- Consolidated for Common
Common Shares Stock Shares In Capital hensive Loss Affiliates Stockholders Total
(as revised) (as revised)
89,920,91 $ 89¢ $ 29,077 $ 2,370,36! $ 2,61) $ 21,39¢ $ (911,667 $ 1,507,46
281,99. 8 — 8,70¢ — — — 8,71
4,417 — — 162 — — — 162
= = = = = (76,609 (76,605)
_ _ — — — (1,259 (1,259
— — (18,33) — — — (18,33)
_ _ — — (940 — (940
154,38 — — — — — — —
2 — 5,37¢ — — — 5,381
— — — — — (1,140 (1,140
— — — — 861 (861) —
— — — — — 38,08¢ 38,08¢
— — — (2,10¢) — — (2,108)
35,98(
90,361,70 $ 904 $ 29,077 $ 2,366,28. $ 4,719 $ 21317 $ (953,439 $ 1,459,42
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(Unaudited and in thousands)

Six Months Ended

June 30,
2015 2014
Operating activities:
Net income $ 47,72¢ $ 38,08t
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigeal by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 101,54¢ 98,60¢
Amortization of lease incentives and acquisitiolated intangible assets and liabilities 9 234
Share-based compensation expense 5,067 5,381
Allowance for losses on accounts and accrued $tréiite rents receivable 1,174 1,27¢
Accrued interest on mortgages and notes receivable (26€) (232)
Amortization of deferred financing costs 1,62¢ 1,451
Amortization of cash flow hedges 1,84¢ 1,87
Amortization of mortgages and notes payable fdueadjustments 84 (902
Impairments of real estate assets — 58¢
(Gains)/losses on debt extinguishment 22C (18
Net gains on disposition of property (3,56¢) (6,33))
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates (3,587) (63€)
Changes in financing obligation 162 (62€)
Distributions of earnings from unconsolidated &ffits 3,43¢ 1,21¢
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable 1,728 1,491
Prepaid expenses and other assets (4,36%) (4,962)
Accrued straight-line rents receivable (11,417 (10,36%)
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and otheriitiedil (19,127 (11,597
Net cash provided by operating activities 122,29! 114,53
Investing activities:
Investments in acquired real estate and relatesigible assets, net of cash acquired (4,277) —
Investments in development in process (44,607 (69,929
Investments in tenant improvements and deferresirigaosts (61,287) (54,79¢)
Investments in building improvements (23,517) (28,87°)
Net proceeds from disposition of real estate assets 6,07( 8,97t
Distributions of capital from unconsolidated aties 10,077 46¢
Investments in mortgages and notes receivable (2,772) (239
Repayments of mortgages and notes receivable 9,221 16,81%
Investments in and advances to unconsolidate deaéfil — (6,22%)
Changes in restricted cash and other investingites (6,741 68€
Net cash used in investing activities (116,819 (133,119
Financing activities:
Dividends on Common Stock (79,52¢) (76,60¢)
Redemptions/repurchases of Preferred Stock (10 —
Redemptions of Common Units — (93
Dividends on Preferred Stock (1,259 (1,259
Distributions to noncontrolling interests in the&dgating Partnership (2,48¢) (2,497)
Distributions to noncontrolling interests in coridated affiliates (75)) (940
Proceeds from the issuance of Common Stock 47,67¢ 11,40«
Costs paid for the issuance of Common Stock (73%) (42)
Repurchase of shares related to tax withholdings (3,72%) (2,65(0)

Borrowings on revolving credit facility 183,90( 302,10(



Repayments of revolving credit facility (233,90() (360,80()
Borrowings on mortgages and notes payable 125,00( 296,94¢
Repayments of mortgages and notes payable (41,887 (134,649
Payments on financing obligation (162) (1,369
Additions to deferred financing costs and otheaficing activities (2,519 (2,467

Net cash provided by/(used in) financing activities (9,370 27,09:

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equisalent $ (389) $ 85It

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsgistents.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows — Continued
(Unaudited and in thousands)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equisalent
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the gherio

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:

Cash paid for interest, net of amounts capitalized

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash investing anéh&incing activities:

Unrealized losses on cash flow hedges

Conversions of Common Units to Common Stock

Changes in accrued capital expenditures

Write-off of fully depreciated real estate assets

Write-off of fully amortized deferred financing afehsing costs

Adjustment of noncontrolling interests in the Opieig Partnership to fair value
Unrealized gains on tax increment financing bond

Assumption of mortgages and notes payable relatadduisition activities

Receivable related to redemption of investmenticomsolidated affiliate

Reduction in the carrying amount of real estatelpased from unconsolidated affiliate by our shdth® unconsolidated
affiliate's gain
Contingent consideration in connection with thelgsitjon of land

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@&stents.
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Six Months Ended

June 30,
2015 2014
(3,899 $ 8,51¢
8,83: 10,18¢

4,93¢ $ 18,69¢

Six Months Ended
June 30,

2015 2014

40,54( $ 41,46¢

Six Months Ended

June 30,
2015 2014
(2,645 $ (4,250
1,20¢ 162
(3,250 10,72¢
31,01: 16,99
17,81 13,27:
(11,47Y 18,33}
194 27C
19,27 —
— 4,66(
3,12¢ —
90C —
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HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(Unaudited and in thousands, except unit and pidarte)

Assets:
Real estate assets, at cost:
Land
Buildings and tenant improvements
Development in process
Land held for development

Less-accumulated depreciation
Net real estate assets

Real estate and other assets, net, held for sale
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash
Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $1,487 $h@14, respectively
Mortgages and notes receivable, net of allowandab and $275, respectively
Accrued straight-line rents receivable, net ofwaiace of $1,022 and $600, respectively
Investments in and advances to unconsolidate daad
Deferred financing and leasing costs, net of acdated amortization of $119,396 and $112,804, respeyg

Prepaid expenses and other assets, net of accechalaiortization of $15,242 and $14,259,
respectively

Total Assets
Liabilities, Redeemable Operating Partnership Unitsand Capital:
Mortgages and notes payable
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and otheiitiiadbil
Financing obligation
Total Liabilities
Commitments and contingencies
Redeemable Operating Partnership Units:
Common Units, 2,910,135 and 2,936,955 outstandespectively

Series A Preferred Units (liquidation preferenced®0 per unit), 29,050 and 29,060 units issued and
outstanding, respectively

Total Redeemable Operating Partnership Units
Capital:
Common Units:
General partner Common Units, 966,193 and 954,8&&anding, respectively
Limited parthner Common Units, 92,743,004 and 91,544 outstanding, respectively
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Noncontrolling interests in consolidated affiliates
Total Capital

Total Liabilities, Redeemable Operating Partnershiits and Capital

See accompanying notes to consolidated financ#tistents.

9

June 30, December 31,
2015 2014
(as revised)
407,18( $ 384,30:
3,991,53 3,807,31
104,69: 205,97:
76,95t 79,35t
4,580,36. 4,476,94.
(1,066,94) (1,024,93)
3,513,41 3,452,00
10,63: 1,03¢
4,93¢ 8,93¢
15,70: 14,59t
27,027 48,55
5,93t 13,11¢
151,02¢ 142,03
43,97¢ 50,68¢
223,38 228,76¢
43,60: 39,48¢
4,039,64 $  3,999,22
2,124,020 $ 2,071,38
214,13: 237,54
8,96: 8,96:
2,347,12 2,317,89:
116,26( 130,04
29,05( 29,06(
145,31( 159,10¢
15,33t 15,07¢
1,518,40: 1,492,94
(4,519 (3,919
17,98: 18,10¢
1,547,21 1,522,22:
4,039,64 $  3,999,22




Table of Contents

HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

Consolidated Statements of Income

(Unaudited and in thousands, except per unit anspunt

Rental and other revenues

Operating expenses:
Rental property and other expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Impairments of real estate assets
General and administrative

Total operating expenses

Interest expense:
Contractual
Amortization of deferred financing costs

Financing obligation

Other income:
Interest and other income

Gains/(losses) on debt extinguishment

Income from continuing operations before dispositin of investment properties and activity in

unconsolidated affiliates

Gains on disposition of property

Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates
Income from continuing operations

Discontinued operations:

Net gains on disposition of discontinued operations

Net income
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling intdeeim consolidated affiliates
Distributions on Preferred Units

Net income available for common unitholders

Earnings per Common Unit — basic:
Income from continuing operations available for coom unitholders
Income from discontinued operations available fanmon unitholders
Net income available for common unitholders
Weighted average Common Units outstanding — basic

Earnings per Common Unit — diluted:
Income from continuing operations available for coom unitholders
Income from discontinued operations available fanmon unitholders
Net income available for common unitholders
Weighted average Common Units outstanding — diluted

Distributions declared per Common Unit

Net income available for common unitholders:
Income from continuing operations available for coom unitholders
Income from discontinued operations available fanmon unitholders

Net income available for common unitholders

Three Months Ended

Six Months Ended

June 30, June 30,

2015 2014 2015 2014
$ 161,13¢ $ 152,72 318,44t $ 301,17
57,27¢ 55,25¢ 114,79: 111,63:
51,24( 50,44: 101,54¢ 98,60¢
— 58¢ — 58¢

8,892 8,75( 20,32¢ 19,48(
117,41( 115,03¢ 236,66¢ 230,30¢
20,857 20,64( 41,29¢ 41,39(
82¢ 79¢ 1,62¢ 1,451
317 (22¢) 49¢ (26€)
22,00: 21,218 43,42t 42,57t
1,19¢ 1,41( 2,437 2,80¢
(220) 18 (220) 18

97¢ 1,42¢ 2,215 2,821
22,70: 17,89¢ 40,57( 31,11¢
2,41z 5,947 3,56¢ 5,947
1,77¢ 667 3,581 63€
26,89: 24,51: 47,72¢ 37,70«
— — — 384

— — — 384
26,89: 24,51: 47,72¢ 38,08¢
(32¢) (43¢) (629 (867)
(62€) (627) (1,259 (1,259

$ 25937 $ 2344 4584¢ $ 35,97¢
$ 027 $ 0.2t 04¢ $ 0.3¢
— — — 0.01

$ 027 $ 0.2 04¢ $ 53¢
96,55¢ 92,78: 96,15: 92,64(

$ 027 $ 0.2t 04¢ $ 0.3¢
— — — 0.01

$ 027 $ 0.2 04¢ % 0.3¢
96,64( 92,90: 96,257 92,76:

$ 0.42t $ 0.42¢ 0.85C $ 0.85(
$ 25937 $ 2344 4584¢ $  35,58¢
— — — 384

$ 25937 $ 2344 4584¢ $ 35,97¢

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@&stents.
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HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
(Unaudited and in thousands)

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,

2015 2014 2015 2014

Comprehensive income:

Net income $ 26,89 $ 2451 $ 47,72t $ 38,08¢
Other comprehensive income/(loss):

Unrealized gains on tax increment financing bond 1 10t 194 27C
Unrealized gains/(losses) on cash flow hedges 26¢ (2,846 (2,645 (4,250
Amortization of cash flow hedges 92t 944 1,84¢ 1,872
Total other comprehensive income/(loss) 1,19¢ (1,797 (602) (2,109
Total comprehensive income 28,08¢ 22,71¢ 47,12« 35,98(
Less-comprehensive (income) attributable to nomodimg interests (329) (43¢) (624) (861)
Comprehensive income attributable to common urdkéis! $ 27,75t § 22277 $ 46,50 $ 35,11¢

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsgistents.

11




Table of Contents

Balance at December 31, 2014

HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

Consolidated Statements of Capital

(Unaudited and in thousands)

Common Units

Noncontrolling

Issuances of Common Units, net of issuance costseaxrwithholdings

Distributions paid on Common Units

Distributions paid on Preferred Units

Share-based compensation expense, net of forfeiture

Distributions to noncontrolling interests in condated affiliates

Adjustment of Redeemable Common Units to fair valne
contributions/distributions from/to the GeneraltRar

Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteéssi® consolidated

affiliates
Comprehensive income:

Net income

Other comprehensive loss
Total comprehensive income

Balance at June 30, 2015

Balance at December 31, 2013

Issuances of Common Units, net of issuance costseaxrwithholdings

Redemptions of Common Units

Distributions paid on Common Units

Distributions paid on Preferred Units

Share-based compensation expense, net of forfeiture

Distributions to noncontrolling interests in coridated affiliates

Adjustment of Redeemable Common Units to fair valoe
contributions/distributions from/to the GeneraltRar

Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteéssis consolidated

affiliates
Comprehensive income:

Net income

Other comprehensive loss
Total comprehensive income
Balance at June 30, 2014

General Limited Accumulated Interests in
Partners’ Partners’ Other Consolidated
Capital Capital Comprehensive Loss Affiliates Total
(as revised) (as revised) (as revised)
$ 15,07¢ $ 1,492,94: $ (3,919 18,10¢ 1,522,22:
432 42,78¢ — — 43,21¢
(817) (80,846 — — (81,669
13 (1,240 — — (1,259
51 5,01¢ — — 5,067
= = = (753) (753)
13z 13,11t — — 13,24¢
(6) (619) — 624 —
477 47,24¢ — — 47,72¢
— — (602) — (602)
47,12:
$ 15,33 % 1,518,400 $ (4,519 17,98: 1,547,21
Common Units )
Noncontrolling
General Limited Accumulated Interests in
Partners’ Partners’ Other Consolidated
Capital Capital Comprehensive Loss Affiliates Total
(as revised) (as revised) (as revised)
$ 1459¢ $ 1,445,18 % (2,61)) 21,39¢ 1,478,56.
87 8,62% — — 8,712
(€Y (929 — — (93
(78%) (77,966 = = (78,759
(13) (1,241 — — (1,252
54 5,32 — — 5,381
— — — (940) (940)
173 (17,004 = = (17,179
(9) (852) — 861 —
381 37,70° — — 38,08¢
— — (2,108 — (2,109)
35,98(
$ 14,13¢  $ 1,399,68° $ (4,719 21,310 1,430,41!

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsgistents.
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HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(Unaudited and in thousands)

Six Months Ended

June 30,
2015 2014
Operating activities:
Net income $ 47,72¢ $ 38,08t
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigeal by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 101,54¢ 98,60¢
Amortization of lease incentives and acquisitiolated intangible assets and liabilities 9 234
Share-based compensation expense 5,067 5,381
Allowance for losses on accounts and accrued $tréiite rents receivable 1,174 1,27¢
Accrued interest on mortgages and notes receivable (26€) (232)
Amortization of deferred financing costs 1,62¢ 1,451
Amortization of cash flow hedges 1,84¢ 1,87
Amortization of mortgages and notes payable fdueadjustments 84 (902
Impairments of real estate assets — 58¢
(Gains)/losses on debt extinguishment 22C (18
Net gains on disposition of property (3,56¢) (6,33))
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates (3,587) (63€)
Changes in financing obligation 162 (62€)
Distributions of earnings from unconsolidated &ffits 3,43¢ 1,21¢
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable 1,728 1,491
Prepaid expenses and other assets (4,36%) (4,897)
Accrued straight-line rents receivable (11,417 (10,36%)
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and otheriitiedil (19,047 (11,569
Net cash provided by operating activities 122,38: 114,63¢
Investing activities:
Investments in acquired real estate and relatesigible assets, net of cash acquired (4,277) —
Investments in development in process (44,607 (69,929
Investments in tenant improvements and deferresirigaosts (61,287) (54,79¢)
Investments in building improvements (23,517) (28,87°)
Net proceeds from disposition of real estate assets 6,07( 8,97t
Distributions of capital from unconsolidated aties 10,077 46¢
Investments in mortgages and notes receivable (2,772) (239
Repayments of mortgages and notes receivable 9,221 16,81%
Investments in and advances to unconsolidate deaéfil — (6,22%)
Changes in restricted cash and other investingites (6,741 68€
Net cash used in investing activities (116,819 (133,119
Financing activities:
Distributions on Common Units (81,667) (78,75¢)
Redemptions/repurchases of Preferred Units (10 —
Redemptions of Common Units — (93
Distributions on Preferred Units (1,259 (1,259
Distributions to noncontrolling interests in coridated affiliates (757) (940
Proceeds from the issuance of Common Units 47,67¢ 11,40
Costs paid for the issuance of Common Units (735) (42)
Repurchase of units related to tax withholdings (3,727) (2,650
Borrowings on revolving credit facility 183,90( 302,10(

Repayments of revolving credit facility (233,900 (360,800



Borrowings on mortgages and notes payable

Repayments of mortgages and notes payable

Payments on financing obligation

Additions to deferred financing costs and otheaficing activities
Net cash provided by/(used in) financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalent
See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@&stents.
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(162) (1,36
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HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows - Continued
(Unaudited and in thousands)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equisalent
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the gherio

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:

Cash paid for interest, net of amounts capitalized

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash investing anéh&incing activities:

Unrealized losses on cash flow hedges

Changes in accrued capital expenditures

Write-off of fully depreciated real estate assets

Write-off of fully amortized deferred financing afehsing costs
Adjustment of Redeemable Common Units to fair value

Unrealized gains on tax increment financing bond

Assumption of mortgages and notes payable relatadduisition activities

Receivable related to redemption of investmenticomsolidated affiliate

Reduction in the carrying amount of real estatelpased from unconsolidated affiliate by our shdth® unconsolidated
affiliate's gain
Contingent consideration in connection with theugsitjon of land

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@&stents.
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Six Months Ended

June 30,

2015

2014

(3,999 $
8,93¢

8,51z
10,28:

493¢ $

18,79¢

Six Months Ended

June 30,

2015

2014

40,54( $

41,46¢

Six Months Ended

June 30,
2015 2014
(2,64Y) $ (4,250
(3,250 10,72¢
31,01: 16,99
17,81 13,27:
(13,789 16,72¢
194 27C
19,27 —
— 4,66(
3,124 —
90C —
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2015
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sfre and per unit data)
(Unaudited)

1. Description of Business and Significant Accaiing Policies
Description of Business

Highwoods Properties, Inc. (the “Company”) is dyfuihtegrated real estate investment trust (“REIRat provides leasing, managem
development, construction and other custonatated services for its properties and for thiadties. The Company conducts its activ
through Highwoods Realty Limited Partnership (tiéptrating Partnership”). At June 30, 2015 , we avoehad an interest iB1.4 millior
rentable square feet of in-service properties,n@ilion rentable square feet of properties undarefigpment and approximately 5@@res ¢
development land.

The Company is the sole general partner of the &joer Partnership. At June 30, 201the Company owned all of the Preferred L
and 93.7 million , or 97.0% , of the Common Unitstihe Operating Partnership. Limited partners olaa remaining 2.9 milliorCommor
Units. During the six months ended June 30, 20ttt ,Company redeemed 26,820mmon Units for a like number of shares of Com
Stock.

Common Stock Offerings

During the three and six months ended June 30, 2@i& Company issued 58,533 and 972,688res, respectively, of Common Si
under its equity sales agreements at an average gades price of $41.72 and $45pE2 share, respectively, and received net procedids
sales commissions, of $2.4 million and $43.2 milliorespectively. As a result of this activity anc tredemptions discussed above,
percentage of Common Units owned by the Compamgased from 96.9% at December 31, 2014 to 97.0%re 30, 2015 .

Basis of Presentation

Our Consolidated Financial Statements are preparednformity with accounting principles generaigcepted in the United States
America (“GAAP”). The Company's Consolidated Financial Statemenisidecthe Operating Partnership, wholly owned subsi&s ani
those entities in which the Company has the cdirigointerest. The Operating Partnership's Conatdid Financial Statements include wh
owned subsidiaries and those entities in which @lperating Partnership has the controlling interddt.intercompany transactions &
accounts have been eliminated. At December 31, 20l had involvement with, but were not the primbgneficiary in, an entity that \
concluded to be a variable interest entity (see8dt

During the second quarter of 2015, as a resultunfpartner’s irrevocable exercise of a kaelt provision in one of our joint ventt
agreements, our partnsrtight to put its 80.0% equity interest back tobesame no longer exercisable. As a result, werdedothe origin:
contribution transaction as a partial sale andgeized $2.2 milliorof gain. Our investment in this joint venture nouatifies for the equit
method of accounting, which resulted in the reteasipe revision of the Consolidated Balance ShaetsConsolidated Statements of Eq
and Capital for all prior periods presented. THea$ of the retrospective application of the eguiiethod of accounting to the Consolid:
Statements of Income, Comprehensive Income and Elasts were not material. The effects of the rqiextive application of the equ
method of accounting to the Company's Decembe2@14 Balance Sheet were as follows:

December 31,

2014

Previously

Reported As Revised
Net real estate assets $ 3481400 $ 3,452,00
Investments in and advances to unconsolidatedatés $ 27,07 $ 50,68¢
Total Assets $ 4,00490 $ 3,999,112
Financing obligations $ 23,51¢ $ 8,96:
Distributions in excess of net income availabledommon stockholders $ (966,14) $ (957,37()
Total Liabilities, Noncontrolling Interests in ti@perating Partnership and Equity $ 400490 $ 3,999,12
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sfre and per unit data)

1. Description of Business and Significant Accaiing Policies — Continued

The unaudited interim consolidated financial staeta and accompanying unaudited consolidated fiakiméormation, in the opinion
management, contain all adjustments (including mbmexcurring accruals) necessary for a fair preg@nt of our financial position, results
operations and cash flows. We have condensed oiteminéertain notes and other information from th&erim Consolidated Financ
Statements presented in this Quarterly Report emified by SEC rules and regulations. These Codatdd Financial Statements shoul
read in conjunction with our 2014 Annual ReportFmrm 10-K.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statemémtaccordance with GAAP requires us to make edémand assumptions that af
the amounts reported in the Consolidated Fina&tatements and accompanying notes. Actual resulig cliffer from those estimates.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

The Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASEgently issued an accounting standards updatedbaires the use of a new five-
step model to recognize revenue from customer aotstr The fivestep model requires that we identify the contraith the customer, identi
the performance obligations in the contract, deieenthe transaction price, allocate the transagtiice to the performance obligations in
contract and recognize revenue when we satisfipémormance obligations. We will also be requireddisclose information regarding
nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of reveno@ eash flows arising from contracts with custom@ise accounting standards upda
required to be adopted in 2017. Retrospective agipdin is required either to all periods preserdedvith the cumulative effect of initi
adoption recognized in the period of adoption. \Weia the process of evaluating this accountingddeds update.

The FASB recently issued an accounting standardategghat amends consolidation requirements. Thendments significantly chan
the consolidation analysis required under GAAP arilll require companies to reevaluate all previowmsolidation conclusions. T
accounting standards update is required to be adopt2016. We are in the process of evaluatirgabhtounting standards update.

The FASB recently issued an accounting standardstepthat requires debt issuance costs relatedrécagnized debt liability to |
presented in the balance sheet as a direct deduftion the carrying amount of that debt liabilitgonsistent with debt discounts. ~
accounting standards update is required to be adapt2016. Retrospective application is requik&e. are in the process of evaluating
accounting standards update.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sfre and per unit data)

2. Real Estate Assets
Acquisitions
During the second quarter of 2015, we acquired:

e land in Atlanta, GA for a purchase price andatedl transaction costs of $5.2 million (includingntingent consideration §0.<
million ); and

e our Highwoods DLF 98/29, LLC joint venture pagtis 77.2% interest in a building in Orlando, FLcempassing 168,00@&ntable
square feet in exchange for the assumption of sdcdebt recorded at fair value of $19.3 millione($éote 6). We expensekD.]
million of acquisition costs (included in generabaadministrative expenses) related to this actipiisi

The assets acquired and liabilities assumed wergded at fair value as determined by managemesatchan information available at
acquisition date and on current assumptions asttwe operations.

Dispositions

During the second quarter of 2015, we sold landafsale price of $0.5 million and recorded a gaindisposition of property o$0.z
million .

During the first quarter of 2015, we sold:

» two buildings for an aggregate sale price 0638illion and recorded aggregate gains on disgwsiti property of $0.4 million anc

* land for a sale price of $2.5 million and reaxdh gain on disposition of property of $0.8 miilio
3. Mortgages and Notes Receivable

Mortgages and notes receivable were $5.9 milliah$I8.1 million at June 30, 2015 and December B8142respectively, and consis’
primarily of secured financing provided to a thpdrty. During the second quarter of 2015, $9.9iamlof secured acquisition financi
provided to a third party in 2012 was repaid, idahg accrued interest. Previously, we concluded thirangement to be an interest
variable interest entity. However, since we did Imax¥e the power to direct matters that most sigaifily impact the activities of the entity,
did not qualify as the primary beneficiary. Accargliy, the entity was not consolidated. Our riskasfs with respect to this arrangement

limited to the carrying value of the mortgage rgabie.

We evaluate the ability to collect our mortgaged antes receivable by monitoring the leasing dtesisand/or market fundamentals
these assets. As of June 30, 2015, our mortgagesaes receivable were not in default and thenewo other indicators of impairment.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sfre and per unit data)

4. Investments in and Advances to Unconsolidate&ffiliates

We have equity interests of up to 50.086various joint ventures with unrelated third pestthat are accounted for using the ec
method of accounting because we have the abiligxécise significant influence over their opergtamd financial policies.

The following table sets forth the summarized inestatements of our unconsolidated affiliates:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2015 2014 2015 2014
Income Statements:

Rental and other revenues $ 12,427 $ 12,84¢ $ 24,65 $ 25,27¢

Expenses:
Rental property and other expenses 6,031 6,23¢ 11,69¢ 12,43¢
Depreciation and amortization 3,11C 3,32¢ 6,22¢ 6,817
Interest expense 2,032 2,301 4,181 4,51z
Total expenses 11,17 11,86¢ 22,10¢ 23,76¢
Income before disposition of property 1,25( 98C 2,55( 1,51(
Gains on disposition of property 16,05/ — 18,18: 1,94¢
Net income $ 17,30 $ 98C $ 20,73 $ 3,45¢

We have a 20.0% interest in SF-HIW Harborview PldZa (“Harborview”). We are the manager and leasaiggnt for Harborvievg
property in Tampa, FL and receive customary managerand leasing fees. During 2012, we also providdtiree -yeaf20.8 millior
interest-only secured loan to Harborview that isestuled to mature in September 201Bhe loan bears interest at LIBOR plus 500 t
points, subject to a LIBOR floor of 0.5%°reviously, we accounted for the original conttibn transaction as a financing obligation sinae
partner had the right to put its 80.0% equity iesérback to us any time during the orear period prior to September 11, 2015. During
second quarter of 2015, as a result of our padrieévocable exercise of a buy-sell provision ur @int venture agreement, our partiser’
right to put its 80.0% equity interest back to esdme no longer exercisable, which resulted inrdieg the original contribution transact
as a partial sale. Harborview is now accountedifimg the equity method of accounting. See Note 1.

See Note 2 for a description of our acquisitiom dfuilding in Orlando, FL from Highwoods DLF 98/29,C during the second quartet
2015. The joint venture recorded a gain on disposibf property of $13.7 million . Our share of $3nillion was recorded as a reductiol
real estate assets.

During the second quarter of 2015, Highwoods KCn@tige Office, LLC and Highwoods KC Glenridge Lahd,C collectively soldtwo
buildings and land to an unrelated third party daraggregate sale price of $24.5 million (beforesiclg credits to buyer of $0.3 millichor
unfunded tenant improvements) and recorded gairdisposition of property of $2.4 million . We reded $0.9 millionas our share of the
gains through equity in earnings of unconsolidatifitiates.

During the first quarter of 2015, Highwoods DLF 26/DLF 99/32, LP sold a building to an unrelateidctiparty for a sale price &7.C
million and recorded a gain on disposition of prtpef $2.1 million . We recorded $1.1 millicas our share of this gain through equit
earnings of unconsolidated affiliates.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sfre and per unit data)

5. Intangible Assets and Below Market Lease Lidlities

The following table sets forth total intangible etssand acquisitiorelated below market lease liabilities, net of analated amortizatior

June 30, December 31,
2015 2014
Assets:
Deferred financing costs $ 19,50¢ $ 19,47¢
Less accumulated amortization (8,099 (7,959
11,41¢ 11,52¢
Deferred leasing costs (including lease incentara$ above market lease and in-place lease acquisélated intangibl
assets) 323,26¢ 322,09:
Less accumulated amortization (111,309 (104,85))
211,96! 217,24
Deferred financing and leasing costs, net $ 223,38( % 228,76t
Liabilities (in accounts payable, accrued expensesd other liabilities):
Acquisition-related below market lease liabilities $ 55,16¢ $ 55,78
Less accumulated amortization (16,300 (13,549
$ 38,86¢ $ 42,23¢
The following table sets forth amortization of in¢gble assets and below market lease liabilities:
Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2015 2014 2015 2014
Amortization of deferred financing costs $ 82t % 79¢ $ 1,628 $ 1,451
Amortization of deferred leasing costs and acquisitelated intangible assets (in depreciation and
amortization) $ 10,16¢ $ 10,05 $ 20,46: $ 19,97¢
Amortization of lease incentives (in rental andesttevenues) $ 42z  $ 39¢ $ 784 $ 75C
Amortization of acquisition-related intangible assgn rental and other revenues) $ 1,18 $ 1,11« $ 2358 $ 2,23(
Amortization of acquisition-related intangible assg@n rental property and other expenses) $ 13¢  $ 13¢  $ 27¢ % 27¢€
Amortization of acquisition-related below markedde liabilities (in rental and other revenues) $ (1,679 $ (1,500 $ (3,400 $ (3,029
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sfre and per unit data)

5. Intangible Assets and Below Market Lease Lialities - Continued

The following table sets forth scheduled future dimation of intangible assets and below markesédabilities:

Amortization of
Deferred Leasing

Costs and Amortization of Amortization of
Acquisition- Amortization of Acquisition- Acquisition-
Related Acquisition- Related Related Below
Intangible Assets Amortization of Related Intangible Assets  Market Lease
Amortization of (in Depreciation  Lease Incentives Intangible Assets (in Rental Liabilities (in
Deferred and (in Rental and (in Rental and Property and Rental and Other
Financing Costs Amortization) Other Revenues) Other Revenues) Other Expenses) Revenues)
July 1 through December 31, 2015 $ 1,64 $ 20,51¢ $ 706 $ 221 % 27 $ (3,09¢)
2016 3,03¢ 35,51 1,23¢ 3,29¢ 558 (5,555
2017 2,72 30,63( 1,121 2,29¢ 558 (5,284
2018 1,53¢ 26,14¢ 1,01t 1,47¢ 55¢ (5,129
2019 1,13(C 21,71¢ 822 1,054 558 (4,810
Thereafter 1,34¢ 53,74 2,58 2,87( 53¢ (14,99¢)
$ 11,41 % 188,26: $ 7,48¢ $ 13,19¢ $ 3,01¢ $ (38,86¢)
Weighted average remaining amortization
4.2 7.C 7. 6.1 5.8 7.8

periods as of June 30, 2015 (in years)

The following table sets forth the intangible assatquired and below market lease liabilities agsbas a result of 2015 acquisit
activity:

Acquisition-
Acquisition- Acquisition- Related Below
Related Related Market Lease
Intangible Assets Intangible Assets Liabilities
(amortized in (amortized in (amortized in
Rental and Other Depreciation and Rental and Other
Revenues) Amortization) Revenues)
Amount recorded from acquisition activity $ 49 % 1671 $ (37)
Weighted average remaining amortization periodsfdsine 30, 2015 (in years) 21 2.2 4.8
6. Mortgages and Notes Payable
The following table sets forth our mortgages antkagayable:
June 30, December 31,
2015 2014
Secured indebtedness $ 290,10: $ 312,86¢
Unsecured indebtedness 1,833,92 1,758,52

$ 212402 $ 2,071,38

Total mortgages and notes payable

At June 30, 2015 our secured mortgage loans were collateralizedeby estate assets with an aggregate undeprediatédvalue of
545.5 million .
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sfre and per unit data)

6. Mortgages and Notes Payable - Continued

Our $ 475.0 million unsecured revolving credit fiagiis scheduled to mature in January 2G8 includes an accordion feature
allows for an additional $ 75.0 millioof borrowing capacity subject to additional lendemmitments. Assuming no defaults have occu
we have an option to extend the maturity for twditinal sixmonth periods. The interest rate at our currerditratings is LIBOR plus 11
basis points and the annual facility fee is 20basints. There was $ 159.0 million and $ 158.0ioniloutstanding under our revolving cre
facility at June 30, 2015 and July 27, 2015, retipely. At both June 30, 2015 and July 27, 209 ,had $ 0.4 milliorof outstanding lette
of credit, which reduces the availability on ouvalving credit facility. As a result, the unusedpaaity of our revolving credit facility
June 30, 2015 and July 27, 2015 was $ 315.6 midlicth$ 316.6 million , respectively.

During the second quarter of 2015, we amended 2259 million , severyear unsecured bank term loan, which was schedaleghtur
in January 2019 . We increased the borrowed amou$350.0 million . The amended term loan is notesitled to mature in June 20&0c
the interest rate, based on our current credihgatiwas reduced from LIBOR plus 175 basis pointsIBOR plus 110 basis points. T
interest rate is based on the higher of the pybicinounced ratings from Moody’s Investors Serdc&tandard & Poos' Ratings Service
The financial and other covenants under the ameneied loan are unchanged. We incurred $1.3 millkdrdeferred financing fees
connection with this amendment, which will be anzed along with existing unamortized deferred Iée@s over the remaining term of
new loan.

During the second quarter of 2015, we prepaid withgenalty the remaining $39.4 millidralance on a secured mortgage loan wi
effective interest rate of 6.43% that was origjnatheduled to mature in November 2015 . We recb®@2 million of loss on del
extinguishment related to this prepayment.

During the second quarter of 2015, we acquiredj@int venture partner's 77.2%terest in a building in Orlando, FL. Simultanelg
with this acquisition, the joint venture's prevityusxisting mortgage note was restructured intew $18.0 millionfirst mortgage note anc
$10.2 million subordinated note, both of which scheduled to mature in July 201The first mortgage note is interest only withedfective
interest rate of 5.36% , payable monthly. The sdinated note has an effective interest rate of 8.@%ditionally, we deposite®#3.0 millior
into escrow to fund tenant improvements, leasingrogssions and building improvements. The first mage note and subordinated note
be prepaid at any time commencing October 20d@n a sale or refinancing of the property. In sereént, the subordinated note and any
all accrued interest thereon would be deemed &dtysfied upon payment of a "waterfall paymentgrfy. Such "waterfall payment" would
a cash payment equal to 50.@¥the amount, if any, by which the net sale proseer appraised value in the event of a refinanekmeed
(1) the outstanding principal of the first mortgagete, (2) the funds deposited by us into escroviuta tenant improvements, leas
commissions and building improvements and (3) 8%0eturn on such funds deposited by us into escraswofAlune 30, 2015, the fair va
of the first mortgage note was $18.3 million ané fair value of the subordinated note equaled ttogepted waterfall payment &1.C
million .

We are currently in compliance with financial coaats and other requirements with respect to ousaatated debt.

7. Derivative Financial Instruments

Our interest rate swaps have been designated aararizbing accounted for as cash flow hedges viidéimges in fair value recordec
other comprehensive income/(loss) each reportimgpgeNo gain or loss was recognized related togkemheffectiveness or to amou
excluded from effectiveness testing on our castv fiedges during the six months ended June 30, 28852014. We have no collatet
requirements related to our interest rate swaps.

Amounts reported in accumulated other compreheries® ("AOCL") related to derivatives will be restified to interest expense
interest payments are made on our variable-rate Beiing the period from July 1, 2015 through J80e 2016, we estimate thb2.9 millior
will be reclassified to interest expense.
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7. Derivative Financial Instruments - Continued

The following table sets forth the fair value ofr @erivatives:

June 30, December 31,
2015 2014
Derivatives:
Derivatives designated as cash flow hedges in acotsipayable, accrued expenses and other liabilities
Interest rate swaps $ 336§ 2,41z
The following table sets forth the effect of ouslkedlow hedges on AOCL and interest expense:
Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2015 2014 2015 2014
Derivatives Designated as Cash Flow Hedges:
Amount of unrealized gains/(losses) recognized in@CL on derivatives (effective portion):
Interest rate swaps $ 26 $ (2,846) $ (2,645 $ (4,250
Amount of losses reclassified out of AOCL into comactual interest expense (effective
portion):
Interest rate swaps $ 92t $ 944 $ 184¢ $ 1,87

8. Noncontrolling Interests
Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Affiliates

At June 30, 2015 , our noncontrolling interestscamsolidated affiliates relate to our joint ventyrartner's 50.0%nterest in offici
properties in Richmond, VA. Our joint venture partis an unrelated third party.

Noncontrolling Interests in the Operating Partnership

The following table sets forth the Company's nomiciling interests in the Operating Partnership:

Six Months Ended

June 30,
2015 2014

Beginning noncontrolling interests in the Operatitaytnership $ 130,04 $ 106,48(
Adjustment of noncontrolling interests in the Opigxg Partnership to fair value (12,479 18,33}
Conversions of Common Units to Common Stock (1,206 (162)
Redemptions of Common Units — (93

Net income attributable to noncontrolling interdstshe Operating Partnership 1,37¢ 1,14(
Distributions to noncontrolling interests in the&ating Partnership (2,485 (2,497
Total noncontrolling interests in the OperatingtRarship $ 116,26(  $ 123,20t
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8. Noncontrolling Interests - Continued

The following table sets forth net income availatdecommon stockholders and transfers from the @amg's noncontrolling interests
the Operating Partnership:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2015 2014 2015 2014
Net income available for common stockholders $ 25,158 $ 22,708 $ 4447: $ 34,830
Increase in additional paid in capital from conians of Common Units
to Common Stock — — 1,20¢ 162
Change from net income available for common stolddrs and transfers from noncontrolling )
interests $ 2515 $ 22,70t $ 45677 $ 34,99t

9. Disclosure About Fair Value of Financial Instrument
The following summarizes the three levels of inghts we use to measure fair value.
Level 1. Quoted prices in active markets for identicabéssr liabilities.

Our Level 1 asset is our investment in marketablusties that we use to pay benefits under ourqualified deferred compensat
plan. Our Level 1 liability is our nogualified deferred compensation obligation. The @any's Level 1 noncontrolling interests in
Operating Partnership relate to the ownership ah@on Units by various individuals and entities otthen the Company.

Level 2.0bservable inputs other than Level 1 prices, ssofuated prices for similar assets or liabilitiggpted prices in markets that
not active; or other inputs that are observableaor be corroborated by observable market dataufostantially the full term of the relai
assets or liabilities.

Our Level 2 asset is the fair value of certain of mortgages and notes receivable. Our Level 2liial include the fair value of o
mortgages and notes payable and interest rate swaps

The fair value of mortgages and notes receivablg mortgages and notes payable is estimated byntt@mie approach utilizit
contractual cash flows and markesed interest rates to approximate the pricevtioald be paid in an orderly transaction betweenkei
participants. The fair value of interest rate swispdetermined using the market standard methogiaddgnetting the discounted future fix
cash receipts and the discounted expected varizddh payments. The variable cash payments of gttesde swaps are based on
expectation of future LIBOR interest rates (forwanakves) derived from observed market LIBOR intemase curves. In addition, cre
valuation adjustments are incorporated in thevfalues to account for potential nonperformance, tisk were concluded to not be signific
inputs to the calculation for the periods presented

Level 3. Unobservable inputs that are supported by littlen@market activity and that are significant to fag value of the assets
liabilities.

Our Level 3 assets include (1) certain of our meges and notes receivable, which were estimatethdoyncome approach utilizi
internal cash flow projections and market intenegés to estimate the price that would be paidniroalerly transaction between mal
participants, and (2) our tax increment financiogd, which is not routinely traded but whose falue is determined by the income appr¢
utilizing contractual cash flows and marletsed interest rates to estimate the projectedmgtiten value based on quoted bid/ask price
similar unrated municipal bonds.

Our Level 3 liability is the faivalue of our financing obligation, which was estiathby the income approach to approximate the
that would be paid in an orderly transaction betwemrket participants, utilizing: (1) contractuakb flows; (2) markethased interest ratt
and (3) a number of other assumptions including atemfor space, competition for customers, changesiarket rental rates, costs
operation and expected ownership periods.
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9. Disclosure About Fair Value of Financial Instrument - Continued

The following table sets forth our assets and litds and the Company's noncontrolling interestshie Operating Partnership that
measured at fair value within the fair value hiehgr

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Quoted Prices
in Active
Markets for Significant
Identical Assets or Significant Unobservable
Total Liabilities Observable Inputs Inputs

Fair Value at June 30, 2015:
Assets:
Mortgages and notes receivable, at fair vadye $ 594: % — % 2,167 $ 3,77¢
Marketable securities of non-qualified deferred pemsation plan (in prepaid

expenses and other assets) 3,51z 3,51z — —
Tax increment financing bond (in prepaid expensesaher assets) 12,64: — — 12,64:

Total Assets $ 22,09¢ $ 351 % 2,167 $ 16,417
Noncontrolling Interests in the Operating Partnership $ 116,26( $ 116,26( $ — 3 =
Liabilities:
Mortgages and notes payable, at fair vaiye $ 2,178,03 $ — $ 2,178,031 $ —
Interest rate swaps (in accounts payable, accrygehses and other liabilities) 3,36¢ — 3,36¢ —
Non-qualified deferred compensation obligationgatounts payable, accrued

expenses and other liabilities) 3,512 3,512 — —
Financing obligation, at fair valug) 8,70( — — 8,70(

Total Liabilities $ 2,193,611 $ 351z $ 2,181,399 § 8,70(
Fair Value at December 31, 2014:
Assets:
Mortgages and notes receivable, at fair vadye $ 13,14: % —  $ 2247 % 10,89t
Marketable securities of non-qualified deferred pemsation plan (in prepaid

expenses and other assets) 3,63¢ 3,63¢ — —
Tax increment financing bond (in prepaid expensesaher assets) 12,44° — — 12,44°

Total Assets $ 29,22: $ 3,63t % 2247 $ 23,34:
Noncontrolling Interests in the Operating Partnershp $ 130,04¢ $ 130,04¢ $ — % —
Liabilities:
Mortgages and notes payable, at fair vaiye $ 214133 $ —  $ 214133 % —
Interest rate swaps (in accounts payable, accrxygehses and other liabilities) 2,412 — 2,41: —
Non-qualified deferred compensation obligationgatounts payable, accrued

expenses and other liabilities) 3,63t 3,63t — —
Financing obligation, at fair value (as revisegl) 8,62: — — 8,62

Total Liabilities (as revised) $ 215600 $ 363t § 214374 § 8,62:

(1) Amounts recorded at historical cost on oan$blidated Balance Sheets at June 30, 2015 arehiber 31, 2014 .
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9. Disclosure About Fair Value of Financial Instrument - Continued

The following table sets forth the changes in oewel 3 asset, which is recorded at fair value anGansolidated Balance Sheets:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2015 2014 2015 2014
Asset:
Tax Increment Financing Bond:
Beginning balance $ 12,64 $ 1356¢ $ 12,447 $ 13,40
Unrealized gains (in AOCL) 1 10t 194 27C
Ending balance $ 12.64: $ 1367 $ 1264. $ 13,67:

During 2007, we acquired a tax increment finandimgd associated with a parking garage developedsbyrhis bond amortizes
maturity in 2020 . The estimated fair value at J88e2015 was $0.2 milliobelow the outstanding principal due on the bondhéf discour
rate used to fair value this bond was 100 basistpdiigher or lower, the fair value of the bond Wobave been $0.3 million lower &0.4
million higher, respectively, as of June 30, 2018e intend to hold this bond and have concludediwe will not be required to sell this bc
before recovery of the bond principal. Paymentefprincipal and interest for the bond is guaratht®eus. We have recorded no credit lo
related to the bond during the three and six moettted June 30, 2015 and 20I¢here is no legal right of offset with the liatyi| which we
report as a financing obligation, related to this increment financing bond.

The following table sets forth quantitative infortioa about the unobservable input of our Level &aswhich is recorded at fair value
our Consolidated Balance Sheets:

Rate as of
Valuation Unobservable June 30, December 31,
Technique Input 2015 2014
Asset:
Tax increment financing bond Income approach Discount rate 8.1% 8.4%

10. ShareBased Payment

During the six months ended June 30, 2015 , the p2om granted 197,408ock options with an exercise price equal to tlusing
market price of a share of Common Stock on the daggant. The fair value of each option is estiedabn the date of grant using the Black-
Scholes option pricing model, which resulted in @ighted average grant date fair value per shafke ®@f9 . During theix months ende
June 30, 2015 , the Company also granted 71,994 slo& time-based restricted stock and 56,957 stafrtotal returrbased restricted sto
with weighted average grant date fair values paresbf $ 45.91 and $ 43.77 , respectively. We dmishardased compensation expens
$1.2 million and $1.1 million during the three miamtended June 30, 2015 and 2014 , respectively$ &t million and $ 5.4 milliomuring
the six months ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 , acisgg. At June 30, 2015 , there was $6.7 milliointotal unrecognized shalmse:
compensation costs, which will be recognized owsemhted average remaining contractual term ofy2ds.

25




Table of Contents

HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.

HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sfre and per unit data)

11. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Los

The following table sets forth the components of O

Tax increment financing bond:
Beginning balance
Unrealized gains on tax increment financing bond
Ending balance
Cash flow hedges:
Beginning balance
Unrealized gains/(losses) on cash flow hedges
Amortization of cash flow hedges
Ending balance

Total accumulated other comprehensive loss

(1) Amounts reclassified out of AOCL into cormtingal interest expense.

12. Real Estate and Other Assets Held For Se

Three Months Ended

Six Months Ended

The following table sets forth the major classeassfets of our real estate and other assets,at@tffidn sale:

Assets:
Land
Buildings and tenant improvements
Land held for development
Less-accumulated depreciation
Net real estate assets
Accrued straight-line rents receivable, net
Deferred leasing costs, net
Prepaid expenses and other assets

Real estate and other assets, net, held for sale

26

June 30, June 30,
2015 2014 2015 2014
$ (252) $ (8649 $ (445) $ (1,029
1 10t 194 27C
(25)) (759 (25)) (759
(5,457 (2,05¢) (3,467 (1,589
26¢ (2,846 (2,645 (4,250
92t 944 1,84¢ 1,872
(4,267) (3,960 (4,267) (3,960
$ (4519 $ (4719 $ @451 $ (4,719
June 30, December 31,

2015 2014
$ 1450 % —
11,57¢ —
2,18¢ 99t
(5,062) —
10,14¢ 99t
33t —
12¢ —
2C 43
$ 10,63 $ 1,03¢
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13. Earnings Per Share and Per Un|

The following table sets forth the computation asiz and diluted earnings per share of the Company:

Earnings per Common Share - basic:
Numerator:

Income from continuing operations

Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling integeim the Operating Partnership from continuingrapens

Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteeeim consolidated affiliates from continuing ogeras
Dividends on Preferred Stock
Income from continuing operations available for coom stockholders

Income from discontinued operations

Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteeeim the Operating Partnership from discontinued
operations

Income from discontinued operations available fimmon stockholders
Net income available for common stockholders
Denominator:
Denominator for basic earnings per Common Shareighted average shares
Earnings per Common Share - basic:
Income from continuing operations available for coom stockholders
Income from discontinued operations available fimmon stockholders
Net income available for common stockholders
Earnings per Common Share - diluted:
Numerator:
Income from continuing operations
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteeeis consolidated affiliates from continuing operas

Dividends on Preferred Stock

Income from continuing operations available for coom stockholders before net (income) attributa

to noncontrolling interests in the Operating Pathip

Income from discontinued operations available fanmon stockholders

Net income available for common stockholders befate(income) attributable to noncontrolling
interests in the Operating Partnership

Denominator:
Denominator for basic earnings per Common Shareighted average shares
Add:
Stock options using the treasury method

Noncontrolling interests Common Units

Denominator for diluted earnings per Common Shaadjusted weighted average shares and assumed

conversiongl) (2)
Earnings per Common Share - diluted:
Income from continuing operations available for coom stockholders
Income from discontinued operations available fanmon stockholders

Net income available for common stockholders

Three Months Ended

Six Months Ended

June 30, June 30,

2015 2014 2015 2014
26,890 $ 2451 $ 47,72¢ $ 37,70«
(782) (742) (1,379¢) (1,129
(328) (43¢) (6249 (867)
(626) (627) (1,259 (1,259
25,15¢ 22,70¢ 44,47 34,46:
— — — 384
— — — 12
— — — 37z
25,15 $ 22,70 $ 44,47 $ 34,83
94,05¢ 90,254 93,64: 90,11:
027 $ 028 $ 047 $ 0.3¢
— — — 0.01
027 $ 028 $ 047 $ 0.3¢
26,890 $ 2451 $ 47,72¢ $ 37,70¢
(32¢) (43¢) (6249 (861)
(62€) (627) (1,259 (1,259
25,930 23,44 45,84¢ 35,58¢
— — — 384
25937 $ 23447 $ 4584¢ $ 3597¢
94,05¢ 90,25¢ 93,64: 90,11:
84 121 104 123
2,91( 2,937 2,921 2,93¢
97,04¢ 93,31 96,66¢ 93,17:
027 $ 028 $ 047 $ 0.3¢
— — —_ 0.01
027 $ 028 $ 047 $ 0.3¢
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13. Earnings Per Share and Per Unit Continued

(1) There were 0.2 million options outstandingidgreach of the three and six months ended Jun203®, and the six months ended June 30, #dwer:
not included in the computation of diluted earnipgs share because the impact of including suciorptvould be antdilutive. There were no su

options outstanding during the three months endad 30, 2014.

(2) Includes all unvested restricted stock whévieldnds on such restricted stock are riorieitable

The following table sets forth the computation aiz and diluted earnings per unit of the Opera@agnership:

Earnings per Common Unit - basic:
Numerator:
Income from continuing operations
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling integeim consolidated affiliates from continuing ogeras
Distributions on Preferred Units
Income from continuing operations available for coom unitholders
Income from discontinued operations available fanmon unitholders
Net income available for common unitholders
Denominator:
Denominator for basic earnings per Common Unit ighted average units
Earnings per Common Unit - basic:
Income from continuing operations available for coom unitholders
Income from discontinued operations available fanmon unitholders
Net income available for common unitholders
Earnings per Common Unit - diluted:
Numerator:
Income from continuing operations
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling integeim consolidated affiliates from continuing ogeras
Distributions on Preferred Units
Income from continuing operations available for coom unitholders
Income from discontinued operations available fanmon unitholders
Net income available for common unitholders
Denominator:
Denominator for basic earnings per Common Unit ighted average units
Add:

Stock options using the treasury method

Denominator for diluted earnings per Common Uratjusted weighted average units and assumed
conversiongl) (2)

Earnings per Common Unit - diluted:
Income from continuing operations available for coom unitholders
Income from discontinued operations available fonmon unitholders

Net income available for common unitholders

Three Months Ended

Six Months Ended

June 30, June 30,
2015 2014 2015 2014
26,890 $ 2451 $ 47,72¢ $ 37,70«
(328) (43¢) (629 (861)
(62€) (627) (1,259 (1,259
25,93% 23,44 45,84¢ 35,58¢
— — — 384
25937 $ 23447 $ 4584¢ $ 3597
96,55¢ 92,78: 96,15 92,64(
027 $ 028 $ 0.4t $ 0.3¢
— — — 0.01
027 $ 028  $ 0.4¢ $ 0.3¢
26,890 $ 2451 $ 47,72¢ $ 37,70«
(328) (43¢) (629 (861)
(62€) (627) (1,259 (1,259
25,931 23,44, 45,84¢ 35,58¢
— — — 384
250937 $ 23447 $ 4584¢ $ 3597
96,55¢ 92,78: 96,15 92,64(
84 121 104 122
96,64( 92,90: 96,257 92,76:
027 $ 028 $ 0.4¢ $ 0.3¢
— — — 0.01
027 $ 028 $ 0.4¢ $ 0.3¢

(1) There were 0.2 million options outstandingidgreach of the three and six months ended Jun203®, and the six months ended June 30, #dtwer:
not included in the computation of diluted earnipgs unit because the impact of including suchamgtiwould be anti-dilutive There were no su

options outstanding during the three months ended 30, 2014.

(2) Includes all unvested restricted stock whévadnds on such restricted stock are riorfeitable
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14. Segment Informatior

The following tables summarize the rental and otkeenues and net operating income, the primanysing propertylevel performanc
metric used by our chief operating decision makhbictvis defined as rental and other revenues kstalrproperty and other expenses
each of our reportable segments. Our segment irafiiomn for the three and six months ended Jun2B@04 has been retrospectively rev
from previously reported amounts to reflect a cleaimgour reportable segments.

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2015 2014 2015 2014
Rental and Other Revenues:

Office:
Atlanta, GA $ 2561 $ 23627 $ 50,390 $ 46,60
Greensboro, NC 5,39¢ 6,58( 10,83¢ 13,03(
Greenville, SC — 767 — 1,60¢
Kansas City, MO 4,142 4,08¢ 8,35¢ 8,18:
Memphis, TN 12,05( 10,05t 23,78¢ 19,89(
Nashville, TN 21,77( 20,18: 43,58¢ 39,781
Orlando, FL 10,94¢ 9,14¢ 21,78: 18,06¢
Pittsburgh, PA 14,71¢ 14,01« 29,26¢ 27,77
Raleigh, NC 25,54 22,53¢ 48,98: 44,02¢
Richmond, VA 10,20: 12,02( 20,781 23,76:
Tampa, FL 18,60: 17,12¢ 37,02¢ 33,75¢
Total Office Segment 148,98: 140,14t 294,80 276,48¢

Retail:
Kansas City, MO 9,14( 9,36¢ 17,70: 18,58¢
Total Retail Segment 9,14( 9,36¢ 17,70: 18,58¢
Other 3,01z 3,21( 5,93¢ 6,102
Total Rental and Other Revenues $ 161,13¢ $ 152,72 $ 318,44t $ 301,17
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14. Segment Information - Continued

Three Months Ended

Six Months Ended

June 30, June 30,
2015 2014 2015 2014
Net Operating Income:
Office:
Atlanta, GA $ 1566: $ 14,322 $ 31,03C $ 28,01¢
Greensboro, NC 3,51¢ 4,24¢ 6,94 8,24
Greenville, SC — 39C — 86¢
Kansas City, MO 2,71 2,69¢ 5,46 5,30z
Memphis, TN 7,641 5,78¢ 15,03( 11,39¢
Nashville, TN 15,48( 13,99¢ 30,71: 27,15:
Orlando, FL 6,34¢ 5,34¢ 12,83: 10,72:
Pittsburgh, PA 8,67( 7,98¢ 16,63: 15,18
Raleigh, NC 18,35¢ 16,32¢ 34,62¢ 31,35¢
Richmond, VA 6,932 8,26¢ 13,81: 15,94:
Tampa, FL 11,02( 10,03: 22,24( 20,06¢
Total Office Segment 96,34: 89,40: 189,32( 174,24¢
Retail:
Kansas City, MO 5,351 5,76¢ 10,06: 11,02¢
Total Retail Segment 5,351 5,76¢ 10,06: 11,02¢
Other 2,16¢€ 2,281 4,27: 4,23
Total Net Operating Income 103,85¢ 97,44 203,65! 189,51(
Reconciliation to income from continuing operationshefore disposition of investment properties
and activity in unconsolidated affiliates:
Depreciation and amortization (51,240 (50,449 (101,549 (98,60¢)
Impairments of real estate assets — (58¢) — (58¢)
General and administrative expenses (8,899 (8,739 (20,329 (19,44°)
Interest expense (22,009 (21,219 (43,42YH (42,579
Other income 97¢ 1,42¢ 2,217 2,827
Income from continuing operations before dispositia of investment properties and activity in
unconsolidated affiliates $ 22,700 $ 17,89¢ $ 4057C $ 31,11¢
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15. Subsequent Event

On July 23, 2015, we sold a building for a saleg@rf $15.3 million and expect to record a gaindisposition of property 0$6.5
million .
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FIN ANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The Company is a fully integrated office REIT tloatns, develops, acquires, leases and manages fespgaimarily in the best busine
districts (BBDs) of Atlanta, Greensboro, Kansay(ilemphis, Nashville, Orlando, Pittsburgh, RalgiBichmond and Tampa. The Comp
conducts its activities through the Operating Raghip. The Operating Partnership is managed byCtrapany, its sole general parti
Additional information about us can be found on website atvww.highwoods.com Information on our website is not part of thisagterly
Report.

You should read the following discussion and analys conjunction with the accompanying Consolidaténancial Statements ¢
related notes contained elsewhere in this Quarkelyort.

Disclosure Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

Some of the information in this Quarterly Reportymeontain forwardeoking statements. Such statements include, iticpédar,
statements about our plans, strategies and praspader this section. You can identify forward-loak statements by our use of forward-
looking terminology such as “may,” “will,” “expeét;anticipate,” “estimate,” “continue’dr other similar words. Although we believe that
plans, intentions and expectations reflected isumggested by such forwaloleking statements are reasonable, we cannot agsuréhat ou
plans, intentions or expectations will be achievafthen considering such forwaldeking statements, you should keep in mind thiofdhg
important factors that could cause our actual tedaldiffer materially from those contained in doyward-looking statement:

» the financial condition of our customers could derate

* we may not be able to lease orlease second generation space, defined as preywioostpied space that becomes availabl
lease, quickly or on as favorable terms as oldelgas

e we may not be able to lease our newly constructéldibgs as quickly or on as favorable terms agioailly anticipatec

e« we may not be able to complete development, aderisireinvestment, disposition or joint venturejpcts as quickly or on
favorable terms as anticipated,;

« development activity by our competitors in our &rig markets could result in an excessive supgbtike to customer demar
e our markets may suffer declines in economic grc

e unanticipated increases in interest rates coullck@se our debt service co

e unanticipated increases in operating expenses cagdtively impact our operating rest

* we may not be able to meet our liquidity requireteesr obtain capital on favorable terms to fund warking capital needs a
growth initiatives or repay or refinance outstarmdiebt upon maturity; and

» the Company could lose key executive offic
This list of risks and uncertainties, however, @ imtended to be exhaustive. You should also vevhe other cautionary statements
make in “Business — Risk Factors” set forth in 8064 Annual Report on Form }-Given these uncertainties, you should not plaegut

reliance on forward-looking statements. We underta@ obligation to publicly release the resultsany revisions to these forwaloeking
statements to reflect any future events or circamtsts or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipateshts.
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Executive Summary

Our Strategic Plan focuses on:
» owning highgquality, differentiated real estate assets in tB®B of our core marke!

» improving the operating results of our existinggedies through concentrated leasing, asset mareagenost control and custor
service efforts;

» developing and acquiring office properties in BBthat improve the overall quality of our portfolimc generate attractive retu
over the long term for our stockholders;

» disposing of properties no longer considered todre assets primarily due to location, age, qualitgt overall strategic fit; a
* maintaining a conservative and flexible balanceeskdth ample liquidity to meet our funding needsl growth prospect
Revenues

Our operating results depend heavily on succegsfalising and operating the office space in outfpllw. Economic growth ar
employment levels in our core markets are andaamititinue to be important factors in predicting future operating results.

The key components affecting our rental and otbeemues are average occupancy, rental rates,emmstary income, new developme
placed in service, acquisitions and dispositiongerAge occupancy generally increases during timh@s@roving economic growth, as ¢
ability to lease space outpaces vacancies thatr agpmn the expirations of existing leases. Averagmupancy generally declines during tii
of slower economic growth, when new vacancies teEndutpace our ability to lease space. Asset aitimuis, dispositions and ne
developments placed in service directly impact remtal revenues and could impact our average occypaepending upon the occupa
rate of the properties that are acquired, soldaegal in service. A further indicator of the predhility of future revenues is the expected i
expirations of our portfolio. As a result, in adalit to seeking to increase our average occupandgasyng current vacant space, we also
concentrate our leasing efforts on renewing oustad leases prior to expiration. For more inforioratregarding our lease expirations,
"Properties - Lease Expirations" in our 2014 AnnRabort on Form 10-K. Our occupancy for our off@tfolio increased from 91.2%i
December 31, 2014 to 92.4% at June 30, 2015 . \peatraverage occupancy for our office portfolid&approximately 92% to 93%6r the
remainder of 2015.

Whether or not our rental revenue tracks averageigancy proportionally depends upon whether GAARSsreinder signed new &
renewal leases are higher or lower than the GAARsrender expiring leases. Annualized rental regsnutom second generation le¢
expiring during any particular year are generadlysl than 15% of our total annual rental revenuls.fdllowing table sets forth informati
regarding second generation office leases signedglthe second quarter of 200we define second generation office leases asdeaik
new customers and renewals of existing customersfice space that has been previously occupieceundr ownership and leases v
respect to vacant space in acquired buildings):

New Renewal All Office

Leased space (in rentable square feet) 331,73 584,76 916,49¢
Average term (in years - rentable square foot weidjh 6.7 4.1 5.C
Base rents (per rentable square font) $ 240: % 239t $ 23.9¢
Rent concessions (per rentable square fapt) (1.12) (0.30) (0.60)
GAAP rents (per rentable square foaj) $ 2291 % 2368 $ 23.3¢
Tenant improvements (per rentable square fapt) $ 357 % 172 $ 2.3¢

$ 091 $ 0.7C $ 0.77

Leasing commissions (per rentable square fapt)

(1) Weighted average per rentable square foot on amehbasis over the lease te

Compared to previous leases in the same officeespamnual combined GAAP rents for new and rendseales signed in theeconi
quarter were $23.38 per rentable square foot,3%Nigher .
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We strive to maintain a diverse, stable and cregtifay customer base. We have an internal guidelinereby customers that account
more than 3% of our revenues are periodically reekwith the Company's Board of Directors. As afiel@0, 2015 no customer account
for more than 3% of our cash revenues other tharFgderal Government , which accounted for less 6% of our cash revenues on
annualized basis. Upon completion of the BridgestAmericas development project in Nashville, whiglscheduled for delivery in mid-to-
late 2017, it is expected that Bridgestone Ameritas, the U.S. subsidiary of Bridgestone Corporatwill account for approximatel$.1%
of our revenues based on annualized cash reveaudsrfe 2015 .

Operating Expenses

Our expenses primarily consist of rental propentpemses, depreciation and amortization, general ahdinistrative expenses ¢
interest expense. From time to time, expensesiatdode impairments of real estate assets. Rentglgoty expenses are expenses asso!
with our ownership and operation of rental progartand include expenses that vary somewhat propatély to occupancy levels, suct
janitorial services and utilities, and expenses ttanot vary based on occupancy, such as propexss and insurance. Depreciation
amortization is a noeash expense associated with the ownership oprepkrty and generally remains relatively consiséaith year, unle
we buy, place in service or sell assets, since epgatiate our properties and related building @ndrt improvement assets on a straliyjia-
basis over fixed lives. General and administraéi¥penses consist primarily of management and erapleglaries and other personnel ¢
corporate overhead and short and long-term incemiwnpensation.

Net Operating Income

Whether or not we record growing same propertyopetrating income (“NOI”"depends upon our ability to garner higher renta¢énees
whether from higher average occupancy, higher GAA&Rs per rentable square foot or higher cost mgoincome, that exceed ¢
corresponding growth in operating expenses. Saomgeply NOI was $3.9 million , or 4.2% , higher iretsecond quarter of 2045 compare
to 2014due to an increase in same property revenues @f i8lion offset by an increase of $2.3 million same property expenses.
expect same property NOI to be higher in the redwirof 2015 compared to 20Tebm higher rental revenues, mostly from increa
average occupancy, higher average GAAP rents peable square foot and higher cost recovery incomtéch are expected to more tl
offset a corresponding increase in same propemyading expenses.

In addition to the effect of same property NOI, wigz or not overall NOI increases depends upon hdrehe NOI from our acquir
properties and development properties placed wicgeexceeds the NOI from sold properties. OveM@ll was $6.4 million , or 6.6%highe!
in the second quarter of 2015 as compared to 20&4to the full year impact of acquisitions andelegment properties placed in servic
2014 and the partial year impact of developmenpgries placed in service in 2015, offset by NGt lfom sold properties. We exp
overall NOI to be higher in the remainder of 20Bnpared to 2014ue to the full year impact of our net investmectivaty in 2014 an
2015.

Cash Flows

In calculating net cash related to operating ati¢isj depreciation and amortization, which are oash expenses, are added back t
income. As a result, we have historically generatgubsitive amount of cash from operating actisitierom period to period, cash flow fr
operations depends primarily upon changes in otrime®me, as discussed more fully below under “Resof Operations,’changes i
receivables and payables, and net additions oedses in our overall portfolio.

Net cash related to investing activities generadlates to capitalized costs incurred for leasing major building improvements and
acquisition, development, disposition and joint tuea capital activity. During periods of signifidanet acquisition and/or developm
activity, our cash used in such investing actigitiéll generally exceed cash provided by investjvities, which typically consists of ce
received upon the sale of properties and distidimstiof capital from our joint ventures.

Net cash related to financing activities generadlifates to distributions, incurrence and repayneémtebt, and issuances, repurchass
redemptions of Common Stock, Common Units and edeStock. As discussed previously, we use afsigmit amount of our cash to fu
distributions. Whether or not we have increasdhénoutstanding balances of debt during a perigetags generally upon the net effect of
acquisition, disposition, development and joint tue@ activity. We generally use our revolving ctefdicility for daily working capite
purposes, which means that during any given peiliodyrder to minimize interest expense, we may mcagnificant repayments a
borrowings under our revolving credit facility.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

We intend to maintain a conservative and flexibd¢gahce sheet with access to multiple sources df aieth equity capital and sufficie
availability under our revolving credit facility &b allows us to capitalize on favorable developnamt acquisition opportunities as they arise.

Rental and other revenues are our principal soofréends to meet our short-term liquidity requirertee Other sources of funds for short-
term liquidity needs include available working dapand borrowings under our existing revolvingdiréacility, which had $ 316.6 millioof
availability at July 27, 2015 . Our shderm liquidity requirements primarily consist oferating expenses, interest and principal amortg
on our debt, distributions and capital expendituiesluding building improvement costs, tenant ioygment costs and lease commiss|
Building improvements are capital costs to maintainenhance existing buildings not typically retht®s a specific customer. Ten
improvements are the costs required to customiaeesfor the specific needs of customers. We aiatieiphat our available cash and ¢
equivalents and cash provided by operating aawjtiogether with cash available from borrowingdasrour revolving credit facility, will k
adequate to meet our short-term liquidity requireteeWe use our revolving credit facility for wonkj capital purposes and for the sherty
funding of our development and acquisition acti\atyd, in certain instances, the repayment of odedt. The continued ability to borr
under the revolving credit facility allows us toickly capitalize on strategic opportunities at gkterm interest rates.

Our longterm liquidity uses generally consist of the retient or refinancing of debt upon maturity (incluglimortgage debt, o
revolving credit facility, term loans and other ansred debt), funding of existing and new buildoheyvelopment and land infrastruct
projects and funding acquisitions of buildings aleVelopment land. Our expected future capital edjperes for started and/or commit
new development projects were approximately $390amiat June 30, 2015Additionally, we may, from time to time, retirerae or all o
our remaining outstanding Preferred Stock and/oseaured debt securities through redemptions, oparket repurchases, privat
negotiated acquisitions or otherwise.

We expect to meet our long-term liquidity needstigh a combination of:

» cash flow from operating activitie

» bank term loans and borrowings under our revolgirgglit facility;

» theissuance of unsecured d

» theissuance of secured di

» the issuance of equity securities by the Comparth@Operating Partnership;

» the disposition of norere asset

We generally expect to grow our company on a legerzeutral basis by maintaining a leverage ratié08h to 45% as measured by
percentage of the undepreciated book value of sseta represented by our mortgages and notes pagadbloutstanding preferred stock
June 30, 2015, our leverage ratio was 42.1% aare tlvere 97.1 million diluted shares outstanding.
Investment Activity

As noted above, a key tenet of our strategic paio icontinuously upgrade the quality of our pditfehrough acquisitions, dispositic
and development. We generally seek to acquire awetldp assets that improve the average qualityuofowerall portfolio and delivi
consistent and sustainable value for our stockmsldeer the longerm. Whether or not an asset acquisition or neveld@ment results
higher per share net income or funds from operat{@RFO") in any given period depends upon a nunabdactors, including whether t
NOI for any such period exceeds the actual costapftal used to finance the acquisition or develepimnAdditionally, given the length
construction cycles, development projects are taatgal in service until, in some cases, severalsyatier commencement. Sales of romme
assets could result in lower per share net incomieF® in any given period in the event the resgltise of proceeds does not exceel

capitalization rate on the sold properties. Foralagking information regarding 2018perating performance contained herein and t
under "Results of Operations" excludes the imp&eang potential acquisitions or dispositions.
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Results of Operations
Three Months Ended June 30, 2015 and 2014
Rental and Other Revenues

Rental and other revenues were $8.4 million , 6%6, higher in the second quarter of 2015 as coetptr 2014rimarily due to highe
same property revenues, 2014 acquisitions and relesrelopment properties placed in service, whiatdased rental and other revenue
$6.1 million, $4.1 million and $4.3 million, respaely. Same property rental and other revenuesvggher primarily due to an increase
average occupancy to 92.6% in the second quar2018 from 90.2% in the second quarter of 2phiher average GAAP rents per rent.
square foot and higher cost recovery income instmond quarter of 2015. These increases were dfigt by lost revenue from prope
dispositions of $5.7 million. We expect rental aiter revenues for the remainder of 2015 to ineea®r 2014 primarily due to acquisitic
closed in 2014 and 2015 and recent developmenepiep placed in service, partly offset by lostenewe from property dispositions. We ¢
expect increasing average occupancy, higher ave&#g®P rents per rentable square foot and highet oasovery income in our sal
property portfolio.

Operating Expenses

Rental property and other expenses were $2.0 millior 3.6% , higher in the second quarter of 28d5ompared to 20Jgtimarily due
to higher same property operating expenses, 20ddisitons and recent development properties platcegrvice, which increased opera
expenses by $2.3 million, $1.5 million and $0.9liml, respectively. Same property operating expgensere higher primarily due to higl
property taxes, janitorial and other buildirgjated services and repairs and maintenancey mdftlet by lower utilities. These increases v
partly offset by a $2.0 million decrease in opemtexpenses from property dispositions. We expatthi property and other expenses fo
remainder of 2015 to increase over 2014 primarilg tb acquisitions closed in 2014 and 2015 andntedevelopment properties placet
service, partly offset by lower operating expendas to property dispositions. We also expect higene property operating exper
resulting from higher property taxes, janitoriatiasther building-related services and utilitiesitiyaoffset by lower property insurance.

Depreciation and amortization was $0.8 million 1% , higher in the second quarter of 2015 aspeoed to 2014rimarily due to 201
acquisitions and recent development propertieseplao service, partly offset by lower depreciatiand amortization due to prope
dispositions. We expect depreciation and amortndir the remainder of 2015 to increase over Z0t4imilar reasons.

We recorded an impairment of real estate asse$.6f million in the second quarter of 20&A4 a building in Greensboro, NC, wh
resulted from a change in the assumed timing afréutlisposition and leasing assumptions. We redontesuch impairment in thgecon
quarter of 2015 .

General and administrative expenses were $0.2omillor 1.8% , higher in the second quarter of 284 Bompared to 20Btimarily due
to higher incentive compensation and compatige base salaries. We expect general and adnaitNg&rexpenses for the remainder of 201
increase slightly over 2014 for similar reasons.

I nterest Expense

Interest expense was $0.8 million , or 3.7% , highehe second quarter of 2015 as compared to p@idarily due to higher avera
debt balances and financing obligation interesteasp, partly offset by higher capitalized interé¥e expect interest expense for
remainder of 2015 to decrease over 2014 primatiy t lower average interest rates and financitigation interest expense, partly offse!
lower capitalized interest.
Other Income

Other income was $0.4 million , or 31.4% , lowertlre second quarter of 2015 as compared to 20idarily due to a loss on de

extinguishment and the repayment of mortgagesvabks in the second quarter of 2015. We expectrdtioeme for the remainder of 201¢
decrease over 2014 as a result of this repayment.
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Gains on Disposition of Property

Gains on disposition of property were $3.5 milliower in the second quarter of 2015 as compare2Digidue to the net effect of t
disposition activity in such periods.

Equity in Earnings of Unconsolidated Affiliates

Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates dsl million higher in the second quarter of 2@k5compared to 201due to our $1.
million share of a gain recognized by Highwoods &f@nridge Land, LLC.

Earnings Per Common Share - Diluted

Diluted earnings per common share was $0.02 ,@%8.higher in the second quarter of 2015 as coetptr 2014due to an increase
net income for the reasons discussed above offsam fincrease in the weighted average Common Sbatstanding.

Six Months Ended June 30, 2015 and 2014
Rental and Other Revenues

Rental and other revenues were $17.3 million ,.@#b, higher in the first six months of 2015 as paned to 2014rimarily due t
higher same property revenues, 2014 acquisitiomss rapent development properties placed in serwidéch increased rental and ot
revenues by $14.1 million, $8.1 million and $6.1lion, respectively. Same property rental and otlesenues were higher primarily due tc
increase in average occupancy to 92.1% in thedixstnonths of 2015 from 89.9% in the first six rttwof 2014, higher average GAAP re¢
per rentable square foot and higher cost recovezgme. These increases were partly offset by gtnue from property dispositions
$10.9 million.

Operating Expenses

Rental property and other expenses were $3.1 milliar 2.8% , higher in the first six months of 80ds compared to 20timarily due
to higher same property operating expenses, 20ddisitons and recent development properties platcegrvice, which increased opera
expenses by $3.7 million, $2.9 million and $1.3liml, respectively. Same property operating expgnsere higher primarily due to higl
property taxes, janitorial and other buildirgjated services and repairs and maintenance ypeffiiet by lower utilities and prope
insurance. These increases were partly offset®i.@million decrease in operating expenses fraopenty dispositions.

Depreciation and amortization was $2.9 million ,300% , higher in the first six months of 2015 asnpared to 2014rimarily due t
2014 acquisitions and recent development propepligsed in service, partly offset by lower depréoim and amortization due to prope
dispositions.

We recorded an impairment of real estate asse$.6f million in the second quarter of 2014 on dding in Greensboro, NC, whi
resulted from a change in the assumed timing afréutisposition and leasing assumptions. We redondesuch impairment in the first
months of 2015.

General and administrative expenses were $0.9omillor 4.5% , higher in the first six months ofl8tas compared to 20pfimarily due
to higher incentive compensation and company-wakelsalaries and benefits.

Interest Expense

Interest expense was $0.9 million , or 2.0% , highehe first six months of 2015 as compared t&@£20rimarily due to higher avera
debt balances and financing obligation intereseasp, partly offset by higher capitalized interest.

Other Income

Other income was $0.6 million , or 21.6% , lowetthe first six months of 2015 as compared to 2pdvharily due to the repayments
mortgages receivable in the first quarter of 20dd second quarter of 2015 and a loss on debt exsihgnent in the second quarter of 2015.
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Gains on Disposition of Property and Net Gains on Disposition of Discontinued Operations

With the adoption of the discontinued operationsoaating standards update in the second quart@0dfi, gains on disposition
property are now generally included in continuingetions. Prior to adoption, such gains were gdlyeclassified as discontinu
operations. Total gains were $2.8 million lowerthe first six months of 2015 as compared to 28@é to the net effect of the disposi
activity in such periods.
Equity in Earnings of Unconsolidated Affiliates

Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates &2s9 million higher in the first six months of ZD&s compared to 20ptimarily due t«
our $1.1 million share of a gain recognized by highds DLF 97/26 DLF 99/32, LP in the first quartér2015, our $1.1 million share o
gain recognized by Highwoods KC Glenridge Land, LinCthe second quarter of 2015 and a $0.4 millieh impairment of our previo
investment in Board of Trade Investment Companthénfirst quarter of 2014.

Earnings Per Common Share - Diluted

Diluted earnings per common share was $0.08 , &920 higher in the first six months of 2015 as paned to 2014lue to an increase
net income for the reasons discussed above offsam fincrease in the weighted average Common Sbatstanding.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Statements of Cash Flows

We report and analyze our cash flows based on tipgractivities, investing activities and financiagtivities. The following table s¢
forth the changes in the Company’s cash flows (Bausands):

Six Months Ended

June 30,
2015 2014 Change
Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities $ 122,29 $ 11453 $ 7,761
Net Cash Used In Investing Activities (116,819 (133,119 16,29
Net Cash Provided By/(Used In) Financing Activities (9,370 27,09: (36,469)
Total Cash Flows $ (3,899 $ 851t $ (12,409

The increase in net cash provided by operatinyities in the first six months of 2015 as compat@@014was primarily due to high
net cash from the operations of properties acquire2D14 and recent development properties plageskivice, partly offset by higher ci
paid for operating expenses in 2015. We expectash related to operating activities for the remeirof 2015 to be higher as compare
2014 due to the full year impact of properties &egliin 2014 and 2015, recent development propepti@ced in service and higher cash fl
from leases signed in prior years as free renbgeréxpire.

The decrease in net cash used in investing aeviti the first six months of 2015 as compared@b42vas primarily due to low:
development activity, higher distributions of capifrom unconsolidated affiliates and lower invesiits in unconsolidated affiliates in 2C
partly offset by higher investments in tenant iny@ments and deferred leasing costs and lower regatgnof mortgages and notes receiv
in 2015. We expect uses of cash for investing digs/for the remainder of 2015 to be primarilyvé by our plans to acquire and commie
development of office buildings. Additionally, ag dune 30, 2015 , we have $390 million left to fuafl our previouslyannounce
development activity. We expect these uses of éaslnvesting activities will be partially offsetybproceeds from nonere dispositior
during the remainder of 2015.

The change in net cash provided by/used in finanaittivities in the first six months of 2015 as g@ared to 2014vas primarily due t
lower net debt borrowings in 2015, partly offsethigher proceeds from the issuance of Common Sto@015. Assuming the net effect
our acquisition, disposition and development attiin the remainder of 2015 results in an incréassur assets, we would expect outstan
debt balances to increase. However, because wet@leontinue to maintain a flexible and consenatbalance sheet with mortgages
notes payable and outstanding preferred stock septimg around 40% to 45% of the undepreciated atike of our assets, we would ¢
expect higher outstanding balances of Common Stoskch event.
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Capitalization

The following table sets forth the Company’s cdjzitdion (in thousands, except per share amounts):

June 30, December 31,
2015 2014
(as revised)

Mortgages and notes payable, at recorded book value $ 2,124,020 $ 2,071,38!
Financing obligation $ 8,96 $ 8,96
Preferred Stock, at liquidation value $ 29,05( $ 29,06(
Common Stock outstanding 94,11¢ 92,901
Common Units outstanding (not owned by the Company) 2,91( 2,931
Per share stock price at period end $ 39.9t $ 44.2¢
Market value of Common Stock and Common Units $ 3,876,260 $  4,243,97
Total capitalization $ 6,03830 $ 6,353,388

At June 30, 2015 , our mortgages and notes payaideoutstanding preferred stock represented 3@mff%ur total capitalization ai
42.1% of the undepreciated book value of our assets

Our mortgages and notes payable as of June 30,@0isted of $290.1 millioaf secured indebtedness with a weighted averagees
rate of 5.82% and $1,833.9 million of unsecurecebtddness with a weighted average interest raB7806. The secured indebtedness
collateralized by real estate assets with an agdeegndepreciated book value of $545.5 million .0Adune 30, 2015, all b&#84.0 millior
of our debt bears interest at fixed rates or isqmted by interest rate hedge contracts.

Investment Activity

During the second quarter of 2015, we acquired:

* land in Atlanta, GA for a purchase price andatedl transaction costs of $5.2 million (includimgntingent consideration ¢§0.¢
million ); and

» our Highwoods DLF 98/29, LLC joint venture pagtis 77.2% interest in a building in Orlando, FLcempassing 168,00@ntabl
square feet in exchange for the assumption of edcdebt recorded at fair value of $19.3 millioBee "Financing Activity." W
expensed $0.1 million of acquisition costs (incldidte general and administrative expenses) relatélis acquisition.

The assets acquired and liabilities assumed werrded at fair value as determined by managemesgicban information available at
acquisition date and on current assumptions asttoe’ operations.

In the normal course of business, we regularly watal potential acquisitions. As a result, from timeime, we may have one or m
potential acquisitions under consideration thatianearying stages of evaluation, negotiation oe diligence, including potential acquisitic
that are subject to ndpinding letters of intent or enforceable contracdd@nsummation of any transaction is subject to eber o
contingencies, including the satisfaction of cusaoyrclosing conditions. No assurances can be peovidat we will acquire any propertie:
the future. See "ltem 1A. Risk FactorRecent and future acquisitions and developmenteptigs may fail to perform in accordance with
expectations and may require renovation and dexwsop costs exceeding our estimates"” in our 201414hReport on Form 10-K.

During the second quarter of 2015, we sold landafeale price of $0.5 million and recorded a gaindisposition of property o$0.z
million .

On July 23, 2015, we sold a building for a saleg@rdf $15.3 million and expect to record a gaindisposition of property 0$6.5
million .

During the second quarter of 2015, $9.9 millmfnsecured acquisition financing provided to adhparty in 2012 was repaid, includ
accrued interest.
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As of June 30, 2015 , we were developing 1,482,88fitable square feet of properties. The followiadplé summarizes the
developments:

Rentable Anticipated Total Investment As Of Estimated Estimated
Property Market Square Feet Investment (1) June 30, 2015 (1) Pre Leased % Completion Stabilization

($ in thousands)

Laser Spine Institute Tampa 176,000 $ 56,00 $ 25,67¢ 100.(% 1Q 16 1Q 16
Seven Springs West Nashville 203,00( 59,00( 20,21: 85.6% 3Q 16 1Q 17
Bridgestone Americas Nashville 514,00( 200,00( 34,56 98.5% 3Q 17 3Q 17
Riverwood 20Q2) Atlanta 299,00( 107,00( 6,08( 66.29% 2Q 17 2Q 19
Plaza 211 Kansas City 28,00( 17,00( 9,322 —% 3Q 15 3Q 16
Enterprise 2 Greensboro 131,20( 7,60( 89:¢ —% 2Q 16 2Q 17
Seven Springs k) Nashville 131,00( 38,10( 2,42¢ —% 2Q 17 3Q 18
1,482,200 $ 484,70(  $ 99,17( 71.1%

(1) Includes deferred lease commissions which areifiesén deferred leasing costs on the Consolid&alince Shee

(2) Recorded on the Consolidated Balance Sheet infattbfor development, not development in proc
Financing Activity

We have entered into separate sales agreementsaathof Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Ingorated, Robert W. Baird & C
Incorporated, BB&T Capital Markets, a division oB&T Securities, LLC, Capital One Securities, In€gmerica Securities, Inc., Jeffel
LLC, Mitsubishi UFJ Securities (USA), Inc., Morg&tanley & Co. LLC, Piper Jaffray & Co., RBC Capidbrkets, LLC and Wells Fari
Securities, LLC. During the second quarter of 201%e Company issued 58,58Bares of Common Stock at an average gross satesql
$41.72 per share and received net proceeds, afees sommissions, of $2.4 million . We paid lesnt$0.1 millionin sales commissions
Jefferies LLC during the second quarter of 2015 .

Our $ 475.0 million unsecured revolving credit faagiis scheduled to mature in January 2C#8&l includes an accordion feature
allows for an additional $ 75.0 millioof borrowing capacity subject to additional lendemmitments. Assuming no defaults have occu
we have an option to extend the maturity for twditdnal six month periods. The interest rate at@urent credit ratings is LIBOR plus 1
basis points and the annual facility fee is 20 dasints. The interest rate and facility fee arseblaon the higher of the publicly annour
ratings from Moody's Investors Service or StandarBoor's Ratings Services. There was $ 159.0 miland $ 158.0 millioroutstandin
under our revolving credit facility at June 30, 80dnd July 27, 2015 , respectively. At both June2®05 and July 27, 2015 , we had.4
million of outstanding letters of credit, which reduces ahailability on our revolving credit facility. Aa result, the unused capacity of
revolving credit facility at June 30, 2015 and J2F; 2015 was $ 315.6 million and $ 316.6 milliaespectively.

During the second quarter of 2015, we amended 225.$ million, severyear unsecured bank term loan, which was schedalethtur
in January 2019. We increased the borrowed amau#850.0 million and used the $125.0 million ofremental new proceeds to re
amounts outstanding under our $475.0 million unsetuevolving credit facility. The amended termrida now scheduled to mature in J
2020 and the interest rate, based on our curreditaiatings, was reduced from LIBOR plus 175 basists to LIBOR plus 110 basis poir
The interest rate is based on the higher of thdigylannounced ratings from Moody’s Investors Segvor Standard & Poa’ Rating
Services. The financial and other covenants urideamended term loan are unchanged.

During the second quarter of 2015, we prepaid withgenalty the remaining $39.4 millidralance on a secured mortgage loan wi
effective interest rate of 6.43% that was origiynaltheduled to mature in November 2015 .

During the second quarter of 2015, we acquiredjaint venture partner's 77.2%terest in a building in Orlando, FL. Simultanely
with this acquisition, the joint venture's prevityusxisting mortgage note was restructured intea $18.0 millionfirst mortgage note anc
$10.2 million subordinated note, both of which scbeduled to mature in July 201The first mortgage note is interest only withedfective
interest rate of 5.36% , payable monthly. The sdinated note has an effective interest rate of 8.@%ditionally, we deposite®#3.0 millior
into escrow to fund tenant improvements, leasingrogssions and building improvements. The first mage note and subordinated note
be prepaid at any time commencing October 20d@ a sale or refinancing of the property. In sereént, the subordinated note and any
all accrued interest thereon would be deemed &dtysfied upon payment of a "waterfall paymentgnfy. Such "waterfall payment" would
a cash payment equal
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to 50.0%o0f the amount, if any, by which the net sale proseer appraised value in the event of a refinanexgeeds (1) the outstand
principal of the first mortgage note, (2) the furtéposited by us into escrow to fund tenant impnosets, leasing commissions and builc
improvements and (3) a 10.08turn on such funds deposited by us into escrawofAJune 30, 2015, the fair value of the first tgage not
was $18.3 million and the fair value of the subpadéd note equaled the projected waterfall payroe$i.0 million .

We are currently in compliance with financial cogats and other requirements with respect to ousadatated debt. Although we exp
to remain in compliance with these covenants atidsdor at least the next year, depending uponfeture operating performance, prop:
and financing transactions and general economiditons, we cannot assure you that we will contitmibe in compliance.

Our revolving credit facility and bank term loansquire us to comply with customary operating cowsiaand various financ
requirements.

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have a 20.0% interest in SF-HIW Harborview Pld#a (“Harborview”). We are the manager and leasiggnt for Harborvieve
property in Tampa, FL and receive customary managérand leasing fees. During 2012, we also providetiree -yeaf$20.8 millior
interest-only secured loan to Harborview that isestuled to mature in September 201Bhe loan bears interest at LIBOR plus 500 t
points, subject to a LIBOR floor of 0.5%reviously, we accounted for the original conitibn transaction as a financing obligation sinae
partner had the right to put its 80.0% equity iestrback to us any time during the orear period prior to September 11, 2015. During
second quarter of 2015, as a result of our pagrieévocable exercise of a buy-sell provision ur int venture agreement, our partiger’
right to put its 80.0% equity interest back to esdme no longer exercisable, which resulted inrdieg the original contribution transact
as a partial sale. Harborview is now accountedifimg the equity method of accounting.

See "Investment Activity "for a description of carquisition of a building in Orlando, FL from Higlads DLF 98/29, LLC during tl
second quarter of 2015. The joint venture recoredin on disposition of property of $13.7 millio®ur share of $3.1 milliowas recorde
as a reduction to real estate assets.

During the second quarter of 2015, Highwoods KCn@tige Office, LLC and Highwoods KC Glenridge Lahd,C collectively soldtwo
buildings and land to an unrelated third party daraggregate sale price of $24.5 million (beforesiclg credits to buyer of $0.3 millicor
unfunded tenant improvements) and recorded gairdisposition of property of $2.4 million . We reded $0.9 millionas our share of the
gains through equity in earnings of unconsolidatiitiates.

Critical Accounting Estimates

There were no changes made by management to tlualcsiccounting policies in the six months endede]30, 2015 For a descriptic
of our critical accounting estimates, see “ManagaraeDiscussion and Analysis of Financial Conditand Results of Operation<Critical
Accounting Estimates” in our 2014 Annual Reportrmrm 10-K.

Non-GAAP Information

The Company believes that FFO, FFO available fanroon stockholders and FFO available for commonkstoiders per share ¢
beneficial to management and investors and areriapoindicators of the performance of any equifiR Because these FFO calculati
exclude such factors as depreciation, amortizaiwahimpairments of real estate assets and gailussgs from sales of operating real e:
assets, which can vary among owners of identicatasn similar conditions based on historical @@stounting and useful life estimates, 1
facilitate comparisons of operating performancewken periods and between other REITs. Managemdigvee that historical cc
accounting for real estate assets in accordande ®#AP implicitly assumes that the value of reahts assets diminishes predictably «
time. Since real estate values have historicadigrrior fallen with market conditions, many indusiryestors and analysts have considere
presentation of operating results for real estarmpanies that use historical cost accounting tinbefficient on a standione basis. As
result, management believes that the use of FFQ, &Filable for common stockholders and FFO avhlétr common stockholders |
share, together with the required GAAP presentatipnovides a more complete understanding of thegamy's performance relative to
competitors and a more informed and appropriatés lmswhich to make decisions involving operatifigancing and investing activities.

FFO, FFO available for common stockholders and BN&ilable for common stockholders per share are@®AAP financial measur
and therefore do not represent net income or rmenie per share as defined by GAAP. Net income ahdncome per share as definec
GAAP are the most relevant measures in determitiagCompany's operating performance because the@arteasures include adjustme
that investors may deem subjective, such as adutiol expenses such as depreciation,

41




Table of Contents

amortization and impairments. Furthermore, FFOlaklé for common stockholders per share does rutt#he amount that accrues dire
to the stockholders' benefit. Accordingly, FFO, F&@ilable for common stockholders and FFO avalétt common stockholders per st
should never be considered as alternatives tongetrie, net income available for common stockho|darset income available for comrr
stockholders per share as indicators of the Conipamerating performance.

The Company's presentation of FFO is consistertt WEO as defined by the National Association of IRestate Investment Trus
which is calculated as follows:

* Netincome/(loss) computed in accordance with G/
e Less net income attributable to noncontrollingriests in consolidated affiliate
» Plus depreciation and amortization of depreciaplerating propertie

» Less gains, or plus losses, from sales of depriecigerating properties, plus impairments on depbde operating properties &
excluding items that are classified as extraordiit@ms under GAAP;

e Plus or minus our share of adjustments, includirepreciation and amortization of depreciable opegatproperties, fc
unconsolidated partnerships and joint venturesefiect funds from operations on the same basig); a

e Plus or minus adjustments for depreciation and @imadion and gains/(losses) on sales of depreciapkrating properties, pl
impairments on depreciable operating propertiesi aoncontrolling interests in consolidated afféiatrelated to discontinu
operations.

In calculating FFO, the Company includes net incaattébutable to noncontrolling interests in theefgting Partnership, which 1
Company believes is consistent with standard imguystactice for REITs that operate through an UPR&tucture. The Company belier
that it is important to present FFO on ancagverted basis since all of the Common Units mated by the Company are redeemable
one-for-one basis for shares of its Common Stock.

The following table sets forth the Company's FF&QFavailable for common stockholders and FFO ablléor common stockholde
per share ($ in thousands, except per share amounts

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,

2015 2014 2015 2014
Funds from operations:
Net income $ 26,890 $ 2451. $ 47,72¢ $ 38,08¢
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteéseim consolidated affiliates (32§) (43¢) (624) (867)
Depreciation and amortization of real estate assets 50,59« 49,60( 100,27: 97,19:
Impairments of depreciable properties — 58¢ — 58¢
(Gains) on disposition of depreciable properties (2,239 — (2,626 —
Unconsolidated affiliates:

Depreciation and amortization of real estate assets 731 92¢ 1,571 1,95¢

Impairment of investment in unconsolidated affdiat — — — 1,35

(Gains)/losses on disposition of depreciable priger 12t — (94¢€) (955)
Discontinued operations:

(Gains) on disposition of depreciable properties — — — (3849
Funds from operations 75,78 75,18¢ 145,37¢ 136,97t
Dividends on Preferred Stock (626) (627) (1,259 (1,259
Funds from operations available for common stockhalers $ 7515¢ $ 74,55¢ $ 144,12t $ 135,72
Funds from operations available for common stockhalers per share $ 077 % 08C % 14¢ $ 1.4¢
Weighted average shares outstanding) 97,04¢ 93,31 96,66¢ 93,17:

(1) Includes assumed conversion of all potentiallytdikiCommon Stock equivaler
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In addition, the Company believes NOI from contiwioperations and same property NOI are useful lsommtal measures of |
Companys property operating performance because such aagtrovide a performance measure of the revenudseapenses direct
involved in owning real estate assets and a petispawot immediately apparent from net income 0OFFhe Company defines NOI as re
and other revenues from continuing operations, festal property and other expenses from continojpgyations. The Company defines «
NOI as NOI less straig-line rent and lease termination fees. Other REIEy mse different methodologies to calculate NOI aach
property NOI.

As of June 30, 2015 , our same property portfotiasisted of 235 in-service properties encompasgihg million rentable square fe
that were wholly owned during the entirety of thexipds presented (from January 1, 2014 to Jun@@I5 ). As of December 31, 2014ul
same property portfolio consisted of 223 in-senpeceperties encompassing 24.2 millimntable square feet that were wholly owned di
the entirety of the periods presented (from Jan@ia®013 to December 31, 2014The change in our same property portfolio was tuthe
addition of 11 properties encompassing 3.2 millimmtable square feet acquired during 2013 and theaely developed properti
encompassing 0.2 million rentable square feet plageservice during 2013 . These additions wersatfby the removal of twpropertie
encompassing 0.1 million rentable square feetwleae sold during 2015 .

Rental and other revenues related to propertiesymmir same property portfolio were $11.7 milliand $9.4 milliorfor the three montl
ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 , respectively, atdl $®illion and $17.9 million for the six monthsdemn June 30, 2015 and 2014
respectively. Rental property and other expendatectto properties not in our same property pbdfeere $3.4 million and $3.7 milliofor
the three months ended June 30, 2015 and 201peatdely, and $6.7 million and $7.3 million foretlsix months ended June 30, 2GiH
2014 , respectively.

The following table sets forth the Company’s NOtlaaame property NOI:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2015 2014 2015 2014
Income from continuing operations before dispositia of investment properties and activity in
unconsolidated affiliates $ 22,700 $ 17,89¢ $ 40,57( $ 31,11¢
Other income (979 (1,42¢) (2,217 (2,827
Interest expense 22,00: 21,21: 43,42¢ 42,57
General and administrative expenses 8,89 8,73: 20,32¢ 19,44°
Impairments of real estate assets — 58¢ — 58¢
Depreciation and amortization 51,24( 50,44: 101,54¢ 98,60¢
Net operating income from continuing operations 103,85t¢ 97,447 203,65! 189,51(
Less — non same property and other net operatougrie (8,310 (5,750 (14,389 (10,620
Total same property net operating income from contiuing operations $ 9554¢ $ 91,697 ¢ 189,27. $ 178,89(
Rental and other revenues $ 161,13¢ $ 152,72. $ 318,44t $ 301,17!
Rental property and other expenses 57,27¢ 55,27¢ 114,79: 111,66!
Total net operating income from continuing operatims 103,85t¢ 97,447 203,65! 189,51(
Less — non same property and other net operatoayrie (8,310 (5,750 (14,389 (10,620
Total same property net operating income from contiuing operations $ 9554¢ $ 91,697 $ 189,27 $ 178,89
Total same property net operating income from cariig operations $ 9554¢ $ 91,697 $ 189,27 $ 178,89
Less — straight-line rent and lease terminatios fee (3,472 (4,21¢) (7,480 (10,24)
Same property cash net operating income from contiring operations $ 9207¢ $ 8747¢ §$ 181,790 §$ 168,64
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ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES AB OUT MARKET RISK

For information regarding our market risk as of Baber 31, 2014 see "Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures dthidarket Risk
in our 2014 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

SEC rules require us to maintain disclosure cositaold procedures that are designed to ensurenfbatiation required to be disclosec
our annual and periodic reports filed with the SECecorded, processed, summarized and reportéunvitie time periods specified in -
SEC's rules and forms. The Company's CEO and CR@ tancluded that the disclosure controls and plees of the Company and
Operating Partnership were each effective at tideoéthe period covered by this Quarterly Report.

SEC rules also require us to establish and maintaérnal control over financial reporting designedprovide reasonable assure
regarding the reliability of financial reporting &athe preparation of financial statements for exepurposes in accordance with gene
accepted accounting principles. There were no amirginternal control over financial reporting itigrthe three months endédne 30, 201
that materially affected, or are reasonably likielymaterially affect, the Company's internal cohtreer financial reporting. There were ¢
no changes in internal control over financial rejpgr during the three months ended June 30, 2046materially affected, or are reason:
likely to materially affect, the Operating Partri@pss internal control over financial reporting.
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PART Il - OTHER INFORMATION

ITEM 6. EXHIBITS

Exhibit
Number Description
10.1 2015 Long-Term Equity Incentive Plan (filed as pafrthe Company's Current Report on ForrK 8ated May 13
2015)
10.2 First Amendment to Amended and Restated S¥ean Term Loan Agreement (filed as part of the Canys Currer
Report on Form 8-K dated June 11, 2015)
12.1 Statement re: Computation of Ratios of the Company
12.2 Statement re;: Computation of Ratios of ther@ing Partnership
31.1 Certification of CEO Pursuant to Section 302 of 8a@banes-Oxley Act for the Company
31.2 Certification of CFO Pursuant to Section 80the Sarbanes-Oxley Act for the Company
31.3 Certification of CEO Pursuant to Section 302 of 8abanes-Oxley Act for the Operating Partnership
31.4 Certification of CFO Pursuant to Section 80the Sarbanes-Oxley Act for the Operating Pastnier
32.1 Certification of CEO Pursuant to Section 906 of $a#banes-Oxley Act for the Company
32.2 Certification of CFO Pursuant to Section 80ée Sarbanes-Oxley Act for the Company
32.3 Certification of CEO Pursuant to Section 906 of 8a@banes-Oxley Act for the Operating Partnership
32.4 Certification of CFO Pursuant to Section 80éhe Sarbanes-Oxley Act for the Operating Pastmier
101.INS XBRL Instance Document
101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document
101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docute
101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition LinklsaBocument
101.LAB XBRL Extension Labels Linkbase
101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation LagébDocument
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, each of the registrants has dailysed this report to be signed o
behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

Highwoods Properties, Inc.

By: Is/ Mark F. Mulhern

Mark F. Mulhern
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Highwoods Realty Limited Partnership
By: Highwoods Properties, Inc., its sole genegatmer

By: Is/ Mark F. Mulhern

Mark F. Mulhern
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Date: August 4, 2015
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES AND
RATIO OF EARNINGS TO COMBINED FIXED CHARGES AND
PREFERRED STOCK DIVIDENDS

Earnings:
Income from continuing operations before equitgamnings of unconsolidated affiliates
Fixed charges
Capitalized interest
Distributions of earnings from unconsolidated &ifiés
Total earnings

Fixed charges and Preferred Stock dividends:
Contractual interest expense
Amortization of deferred financing costs
Financing obligation interest expense
Capitalized interest
Interest component of rental expense

Total fixed charges
Preferred Stock dividends

Total fixed charges and Preferred Stock dividends

Ratio of earnings to fixed charges

Ratio of earnings to combined fixed charges and Pferred Stock dividends

Exhibit 12.1

Six Months Ended

June 30, 2015

$ 44,13¢

48,57
(3,437
3,43¢

$ 92,72(

$ 41,29¢

1,62¢
49¢
3,432
1,71¢
48,57¢
1,25¢

$ 49,82¢

1.91
1.8¢€



HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES AND
RATIO OF EARNINGS TO COMBINED FIXED CHARGES AND
PREFERRED UNIT DISTRIBUTIONS

Earnings:
Income from continuing operations before equitgamnings of unconsolidated affiliates
Fixed charges
Capitalized interest
Distributions of earnings from unconsolidated &ifiés
Total earnings

Fixed charges and Preferred Unit distributions:
Contractual interest expense
Amortization of deferred financing costs
Financing obligation interest expense
Capitalized interest
Interest component of rental expense

Total fixed charges
Preferred Unit distributions

Total fixed charges and Preferred Unit distributions

Ratio of earnings to fixed charges

Ratio of earnings to combined fixed charges and Pferred Unit distributions

Exhibit 12.2

Six Months Ended
June 30, 2015

44,13
48,57
(3,437

3,43¢

92,72(

41,29¢
1,62¢
49¢
3,432
1,71¢

48,57¢
1,25¢

49,82¢

1.91

1.8¢




Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

I, Edward J. Fritsch, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this Quarterly Report on FofivQlof Highwoods Properties, In

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiomny untrue statement of a material fact ortamstate a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisleading with respect to tl
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamtd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the Registrant as of, andli@ periods presented in this
report;

4. The Registrant’s other certifying officers drate responsible for establishing and maintaimiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Registrard have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and proceduresaused such disclosure controls and procedurés tesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the Registrant, including its consolidatubsidiaries, is made kno
to us by others within those entities, particulahlying the period in which this report is beingpared;

(b) designed such internal control over financial réipgr or caused such internal control over finahoigporting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable amsaraegarding the reliability of financial repogirand the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting principles

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the Registsadisclosure controls and procedures and preseémtdds report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contrnols procedures, as of the end of the period coveydhis report based on st
evaluation; and

(d) disclosed in this report any change in the iReant's internal control over financial reporting thatcooed during th
Registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the Regigs fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbrg that has material
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeadtf, the Registrant’s internal control over finahceporting; and

5. The Registrant’ other certifying officers and | have disclosedsdx on our most recent evaluation of internalrobwtver financie
reporting, to the Registrant’s auditors and the if@bmmittee of the Registrast’Board of Directors (or persons performing
equivalent functions):

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesisethe design or operation of internal controgéofinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Regg’s ability to record, process, summarize and refiaincial information
and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that imesl management or other employees who have aisattifrole in the Registramst’
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: August 4, 2015

/sl Edward J. Fritsch

Edward J. Fritsch
President and Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

[, Mark F. Mulhern, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this Quarterly Report on FofivQlof Highwoods Properties, In

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiomny untrue statement of a material fact ortamstate a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisleading with respect to tl
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamtd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the Registrant as of, andli@ periods presented in this
report;

4. The Registrant’s other certifying officers drate responsible for establishing and maintaimiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Registrard have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and proceduresaused such disclosure controls and procedurés tesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the Registrant, including its consolidatubsidiaries, is made kno
to us by others within those entities, particulahlying the period in which this report is beingpared;

(b) designed such internal control over financial réipgr or caused such internal control over finahoigporting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable amsaraegarding the reliability of financial repogirand the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting principles

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the Registsadisclosure controls and procedures and preseémtdds report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contrnols procedures, as of the end of the period coveydhis report based on st
evaluation; and

(d) disclosed in this report any change in the iReant's internal control over financial reporting thatcooed during th
Registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the Regigs fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbrg that has material
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeadtf, the Registrant’s internal control over finahceporting; and

5. The Registrant’ other certifying officers and | have disclosedsdx on our most recent evaluation of internalrobwtver financie
reporting, to the Registrant’s auditors and the if@bmmittee of the Registrast’Board of Directors (or persons performing
equivalent functions):

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesisethe design or operation of internal controgéofinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Regg’s ability to record, process, summarize and refiaincial information
and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that imesl management or other employees who have aisattifrole in the Registramst’
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: August 4, 2015

/s/ Mark F. Mulhern

Mark F. Mulhern
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 31.3

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

I, Edward J. Fritsch, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on FofvQlof Highwoods Realty Limited Partnerst

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiomny untrue statement of a material fact ortamstate a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisleading with respect to tl
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamtd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the Registrant as of, andli@ periods presented in this
report;

4. The Registrant’s other certifying officers drate responsible for establishing and maintaimiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Registrard have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and proceduresaused such disclosure controls and procedurés tesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the Registrant, including its consolidatubsidiaries, is made kno
to us by others within those entities, particulahlying the period in which this report is beingpared;

(b) designed such internal control over financial réipgr or caused such internal control over finahoigporting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable amsaraegarding the reliability of financial repogirand the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting principles

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the Registsadisclosure controls and procedures and preseémtdds report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contrnols procedures, as of the end of the period coveydhis report based on st
evaluation; and

(d) disclosed in this report any change in the iReant's internal control over financial reporting thatcooed during th
Registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the Regigs fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbrg that has material
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeadtf, the Registrant’s internal control over finahceporting; and

5. The Registrant’ other certifying officers and | have disclosedsdx on our most recent evaluation of internalrobwtver financie
reporting, to the Registrant’s auditors and the if@bmmittee of the Registrast’Board of Directors (or persons performing
equivalent functions):

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesisethe design or operation of internal controgéofinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Regg’s ability to record, process, summarize and refiaincial information
and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that imesl management or other employees who have aisattifrole in the Registramst’
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: August 4, 2015

/sl Edward J. Fritsch

Edward J. Fritsch
President and Chief Executive Officer of the GehBeatner




Exhibit 31.4

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

[, Mark F. Mulhern, certify that:

1.
2.

| have reviewed this Quarterly Report on FofvQlof Highwoods Realty Limited Partnerst

Based on my knowledge, this report does notatommny untrue statement of a material fact ortamstate a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisleading with respect to tl
period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statemems other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the Registrant as of, andli@ periods presented in this
report;

The Registrant’s other certifying officers drate responsible for establishing and maintaimisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Registrard have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and proceduresaused such disclosure controls and procedurés tesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the Registrant, including its consolidatubsidiaries, is made kno
to us by others within those entities, particulahlying the period in which this report is beingpared;

(b) designed such internal control over financial réipgr or caused such internal control over finahoigporting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable amsaraegarding the reliability of financial repogirand the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting principles

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the Registsadisclosure controls and procedures and preseémtdds report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contrnols procedures, as of the end of the period coveydhis report based on st
evaluation; and

(d) disclosed in this report any change in the iReant's internal control over financial reporting thatcooed during th
Registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the Regigs fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbrg that has material
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeadtf, the Registrant’s internal control over finahceporting; and

The Registrant’ other certifying officers and | have disclosedsdx on our most recent evaluation of internalrobtver financie
reporting, to the Registrant’s auditors and the if@bmmittee of the Registrast’Board of Directors (or persons performing
equivalent functions):

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesisethe design or operation of internal controgéofinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Regg’s ability to record, process, summarize and refiaincial information
and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that imesl management or other employees who have aisattifrole in the Registramst’
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: August 4, 2015

/s/ Mark F. Mulhern

Mark F. Mulhern
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offickthe
General Partner



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Highwedeiroperties, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Qtfer period endedune 30, 201
as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissio the date hereof (the “Reportl) Edward J. Fritsch, President and Chief Exec
Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 ICS8 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of theaBas-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934, as amended; ¢

2) The information contained in the Report fairly pmets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations of
Company.

/s/ Edward J. Fritsch

Edward J. Fritsch
President and Chief Executive Officer

August 4, 2015




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Highwedeiroperties, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Qtfer period endedune 30, 201
as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissio the date hereof (the “Reportl)Mark F. Mulhern, Senior Vice President and C
Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursutmtl8 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to 9@t Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934, as amended; ¢

2) The information contained in the Report fairly pmets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations of
Company.

/s/ Mark F. Mulhern

Mark F. Mulhern
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

August 4, 2015




Exhibit 32.3

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Highwsoddealty Limited Partnership (the “Operating Parth#™”) on Form 109 for the
period ended June 30, 2015 as filed with the Seesirand Exchange Commission on the date hereef“Report”),|, Edward J. Fritscl
President and Chief Executive Officer of Highwod®perties, Inc., general partner of the OperaBagtnership, certify, pursuant to
U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 db#nbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934, as amended; ¢

2) The information contained in the Report fairly pmets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations of
Operating Partnership.

/sl Edward J. Fritsch

Edward J. Fritsch

President and Chief Executive Officer of the GehBeatner
August 4, 2015




Exhibit 32.4

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Highwsoddealty Limited Partnership (the “Operating Parth#™”) on Form 109 for the
period ended June 30, 2015 as filed with the Sgesrand Exchange Commission on the date hereef“Report”), |, Mark F. Mulhern
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial OfficeHighwoods Properties, Inc., general partner ef @perating Partnership, certify, purst
to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 8@tdarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934, as amended; ¢

2) The information contained in the Report fairly prets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations of
Operating Partnership.

/s/ Mark F. Mulhern

Mark F. Mulhern

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officethe General Partner
August 4, 2015




